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AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

L

CLAYTON CITY COUNCIL

* %%

TUESDAY, February 7, 2023
7:00 P.M.

*+* NOTICE ***

Members of the public will be able to participate either in-person at
Hoyer Hall, Clayton Community Library
6125 Clayton Road, Clayton, CA 94517
or
remotely via Zoom.

d

Mayor: Jeff Wan
Vice Mayor: Jim Diaz

Council Members
Peter Cloven
Holly Tillman
Kim Trupiano

A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each public item is
available for public review on the City’s website at www.claytonca.qov

Agendas are posted at: 1) City Hall, 6000 Heritage Trail; 2) Library, 6125 Clayton Road; 3) Ohm'’s
Bulletin Board, 1028 Diablo Street, Clayton; and 4) City Website at www.claytonca.gov

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council after distribution of the Agenda
Packet and regarding any public item on this Agenda is available for review on the City’s website
at www.claytonca.gov

If you have a physical impairment that requires special accommodation to participate, please call the
City Clerk’s office at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting at (925) 673-7300.


http://www.ci.clayton.ca.us/
http://www.ci.clayton.ca.us/
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Instructions for Virtual City Council Meeting — February 7

Tonight’s meeting will be available to the public both in-person and remotely via Zoom. As a
courtesy, and technology permitting, members of the public may continue to provide live remote
oral comment via the Zoom video conferencing platform. However, the City cannot guarantee
that the public’s access to teleconferencing technology will be uninterrupted, and technical
difficulties may occur from time to time.

To follow or participate in the meeting:

1. Videoconference: to follow the meeting on-line, click here to register:
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/ WN_0690GcosRnmvy4dNOutGlw
After clicking on the URL, please take a few seconds to submit your first and last name,

and e-mail address then click “Register”, which will approve your registration and a new
URL to join the meeting will appear.

Phone-in: Once registered, you will receive an e-mail with instructions to join the meeting
telephonically, and then dial Telephone: 877 853 5257 (Toll Free)
2. using the Webinar ID and Password found in the e-mail.

E-mail Public Comments: If preferred, please e-mail public comments to the City Clerk, Ms.
Calderon at janetc@claytonca.gov by 5 PM on the day of the City Council meeting. All E-mail

Public Comments will be forwarded to the entire City Council.

For those who choose to attend the meeting via videoconferencing or telephone shall have 3
minutes for public comments.

Location:

Videoconferencing Meeting (this meeting via teleconferencing is open to the public)
To join this virtual meeting on-line click here:

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/ WN_0690GcosRnmvy4dNOutGlw

To join on telephone, you must register in the URL above, which sends an e-mail to your inbox,
and then dial (877) 853-5257 using the Webinar ID and Password found in the e-mail.
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* CITY COUNCIL *

February 7, 2023

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL — Mayor Wan.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - led by Mayor Wan.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON - AGENDA ITEMS

Members of the public may address the City Council on items within the Council’s jurisdiction (which
are not on the agenda) at this time. To assure an orderly meeting and an equal opportunity for
everyone, each speaker is limited to 3 minutes, enforced at the Mayor’s discretion. In accordance
with State Law, no action may take place on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. The
Council may respond to statements made or questions asked or may at its discretion request Staff
to report back at a future meeting concerning the matter.

Public comment and input on Public Hearing, Action ltems and other Agenda Items will be allowed
when each item is considered by the City Council.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Consent Calendar items are typically routine in nature and are considered for approval by one
single motion of the City Council. Members of the Council, Audience, or Staff wishing an item
removed from the Consent Calendar for purpose of public comment, question, discussion or
alternative action may request so through the Mayor.

Approve the minutes of the City Council’s regular meeting of January 17, 2023.
(City Clerk) (View here)

Approve the Financial Demands and Obligations of the City. (Finance) (View here)
Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Clayton Allowing for Video and

Teleconference Meetings as Needed during the COVID-19 State of Emergency
Under AB 361. (City Manager) (View here)

RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS

Information Only — No Action Requested.

e Black and African American History Month.

REPORTS

City Manager/Staff



10.

(@)

11.

12.

PUBLIC HEARINGS — None.

ACTION ITEMS

Audited Annual Financial Report of the City of Clayton for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2022. (Interim Finance Director) (View here)

Adopt a Resolution Adding One Police Sergeant Position and Reducing One
Police Officer Position. (Police Chief) (View here)

Waive First Reading and Introduce an Ordinance Amending Clayton Municipal

Code Chapter 3.08.010 Signatures — Authority Designated. (City Manager)
(View here)

COUNCIL ITEMS - limited to Council requests and directives for future meetings.

COUNCIL REPORTS

City Council - Reports from Council liaisons to Regional Committees,
Commissions and Boards.

CLOSED SESSION — None.

ADJOURNMENT

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be February 21, 2023.

HHHHRA
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Agenda Item: 4(a)

MINUTES

OF THE
REGULAR MEETING
CLAYTON CITY COUNCIL

TUESDAY, January 17, 2023

CALL TO ORDER THE CITY COUNCIL — The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m.
by Mayor Wan held via a hybrid meeting format live in-person and Zoom
videoconference and broadcast from Hoyer Hall, Clayton Community Library, 6125
Clayton Road, Clayton, California. Councilmembers present: Mayor Wan, Vice Mayor
Diaz, and Councilmembers Cloven, Tillman (via Zoom), and Trupiano. Councilmembers
absent: None. Staff present: City Manager Reina Schwartz, City Attorney Mala
Subramanian, Community Development Director Dana Ayers, and City Clerk Janet
Calderon.

A roll-call vote was conducted to allow Councilmember Tillman to participate and
vote in this evening’s City Council meeting via Zoom. (Passed; 5-0)

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — led by Mayor Wan.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON - AGENDA ITEMS — None.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Councilmember Holly Tillman requested a change to Consent Calendar Item 4(g) by
consideration of Peter Cloven to serve on the City Council Ad Hoc Energy Services &
Infrastructure Renewal Committee.

It was moved by Councilmember Cloven, seconded by Councilmember Trupiano,
to approve the Consent Calendar items 4(a) — 4(g), as submitted. (Passed 5-0).

Approved the minutes of the City Council’s regular meeting of December 20, 2022 and
City Council’s special meeting of January 10, 2023. (City Clerk)

Approved the Financial Demands and Obligations of the City. (Finance)

Adopted Resolution No. 1-2023 of the City Council of the City of Clayton Allowing for
Video and Teleconference Meetings as Needed during the COVID-19 State of
Emergency Under AB 361. (City Manager)

Adopted Resolution No. 2-2023 Ratifying the Proclamation of the Director of Emergency
Services of the City of Clayton Declaring a Local Emergency Due to Adverse Weather
Conditions Beginning December 31, 2022. (City Manager)

Approved a Grant Application for the Downtown Pedestrian Improvement Project to the
Metropolitan Transportation Commission for the Allocation of Fiscal Year 2023-2024
Transportation Development Act (TDA) Article 3 Pedestrian/Bicycle Funding Including:
1) Adopted Resolution No. 3-2023 Approving the Grant Application, Finding the Project
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(a)

(a)

is Categorically Exempt Under CEQA and Authorizing Filing with the County Clerk
Recorder, and 2) Adopted Resolution No. 4-2023 to Exempt the City of Clayton from
Forming a Separate Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee and Designating the
Contra Costa Countywide Bicycle Advisory Committee as the Review Body for TDA
Funding. (City Engineer)

Adopted Resolution No. 5-2023 Approving a Professional Services Agreement with
Theis Engineering & Associates through June 30, 2024 with up to Four One-Year
Renewals, for City Engineering Services, Continuing the Appointment of Larry Theis, PE
as City Engineer and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Agreement.

(City Manager)

Established a City Council Ad Hoc for Energy Services & Infrastructure Renewal and
Appoint Mayor Wan and Councilmember Trupiano to the Committee. (City Manager)

RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS

Certificates of Recognition to public school students for exemplifying the “Do the Right
Thing” character trait of “Kindness” during the months of November and December
2022. (Mayor Wan)

Councilmember Cloven and Mt. Diablo Elementary School Principal Katie Sanchez
and teachers Mrs. Cheska and Mrs. Huaco presented certificates to Matthew Dondero
and Liam Wang.

Councilmember Cloven and Diablo View Middle School Principal Peter Fong presented
certificates to Clarence Camposano and Chiamaka Nwadigo.

REPORTS

City Manager Reina Schwartz provided brief updates regarding storm impacts, the need
for additional Community Financial Sustainability Committee members, announced the
FY2021/22 Audit has been completed and will be presented to the Budget/Audit
Committee on January 23", the background for the Finance Director is almost complete,
the Office Assistant/Code Enforcement Officer will be starting soon, and thanked the
staff, Council and Community members for their support during her tenure.

ACTION ITEM

At the request of Mayor Wan, Action Iltem 8(a) was moved prior to the Public
Hearing.

Request by Mayor Wan to Discuss Potential Support for the “Our Neighborhood Voices”.
(Mayor Wan)

Mayor Wan introduced Susan Candell to present this item.

Following questions by the City Council, Mayor Wan opened public comment.
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Agenda Item: 4(a)

Ed Hartley is not supportive of the concept and needs more information.
Amy Hines-Shaikh is not in support of this item.

Ed Miller expressed concern regarding the consequences of not allowing the state
to have input.

Tuija Catalano is not supportive of this item.

Terri Denslow requested more information on the claims made without supporting
documentation.

Mayor Wan closed public comment.

It was moved by Mayor Wan, seconded by Vice Mayor Diaz, to Support “Our
Neighborhood Voices” as stated. (Passed; 3-2, No; Cloven and Tillman)

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS

(a) Adoption the City of Clayton 6th Cycle Housing Element Update and
Associated Land Use Element Amendments, and Certification of the Final
Environmental Impact Report Prepared for the Project.

(Community Development Director)

Community Development Director Dana Ayers presented the report.
Following questions by the City Council, Mayor Wan opened the public hearing.

Jim Moita requests the City move the Urban Limit Line to include his property and
request a nearby property owner for access to their road.

Vince Moita requests Marsh Creek Road Specific Plan be included in the Housing
Element.

Mayor Wan closed the public hearing.

It was moved by Mayor Wan, seconded by Councilmember Trupiano, to
Adopt Resolution No. 6-2023 Adopting Environmental Findings Pursuant to
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Certifying the City of
Clayton 6" Cycle Housing Element Update and Associated Land Use Element
and Zoning Code Amendments Final Environmental Impact Report (SCH
#2022030086), Adopting the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program,
and Approving the Project to Adopt the Housing Element Update for the 6
Housing Cycle and Associated Amendments to the General Plan Land Use
Element and Land Use Diagram. (Passed; 5-0)

8. ACTION ITEM — Continued
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(c)

(a)

Resolution Approving an Employment Agreement for an Interim City Manager with
Rowland Bernal, Jr. (City Manager)

City Manager Reina Schwartz presented the report.

Following questions by the City Council, Mayor Wan opened the public comment;
no comments were offered.

Mr. Bernal thanked the City Council and looks forward to serving the Clayton
community.

It was moved by Vice Mayor Diaz, seconded by Councilmember Tillman, to
Adopt Resolution No. 7-2023 Certifying Findings and Approving an
Employment Agreement for the Interim Employment of CalPERS Retired
Annuitant Rowland Bernal, Jr. As Interim Clayton City Manager. (Passed; 5-0)

Adopt a Resolution Approving an Addendum to the Terms and Conditions of
Employment for Clayton’s Miscellaneous Employees. (City Manager)
City Manager Reina Schwartz presented the report.

Following questions by the City Council, Mayor Wan opened the public comment;
no comments were offered.

It was moved by Councilmember Cloven, seconded by Mayor Wan, to
Adopt Resolution No. 8-2023 Approving Addendum No. 1 to the Terms &
Conditions of Employment for the City of Clayton’s Undesignated
Miscellaneous Employees Effective July 1, 2022 — June 30, 2023. (Passed; 5-0)

COUNCIL ITEMS

Councilmember Trupiano requested a future agenda item to include a presentation by
Clayton Valley Village and Diamond Terrace fee increases.

COUNCIL REPORTS

City Council - Reports from Council liaisons to Regional Committees, Commissions and
Boards.

Councilmember Tillman attended the Housing Element Study Session, attended the Cal
Cities Community Services Policy Committee meeting, attended the Cal Cities East Bay
Division meeting where she was elected Board Member at-large, met with the City
Manager, and spoke to constituents regarding the Trails and Landscaping Committee,
storm impacts and Cardinet Trail.

Councilmember Cloven attended the Contra Costa County Mayors’ Conference, spoke
to constituents regarding storm damage, Housing Element and Neighborhood Voices,
and answered emails and phone calls.
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Agenda Item: 4(a)

Councilmember Trupiano attended the League of California Cities East Bay Division
meeting, will be attending the Cal Cities New Council Member Academy, and responded
to constituents regarding the Housing Element.

Vice Mayor Diaz attended the Clayton Business and Community Association Art and
Wine Committee meeting, attended the Contra Costa County Mayors’ Conference,
assisted the Clayton Business and Community Association holiday decoration removal,
attended the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors Reorganization meeting,
attended the Special City Council meeting, met with the Morgan Territory Community
Association, met with the City Manager, and met with the Police Chief.

Mayor Wan met with Department Heads, attended the Contra Costa County Mayors’
Conference, attended the Closed Session regarding the Interim City Manager, thanked
Maintenance and Police with their assistance with the recent storm impacts, and met
with Susan Candell.

11. CLOSED SESSION — None.

12. ADJOURNMENT- on call by Mayor Wan, the City Council adjourned its meeting at 9:50
p.m.

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be February 7, 2023.

#HRHHH

Respectfully submitted,

Janet Calderon, City Clerk

APPROVED BY THE CLAYTON CITY COUNCIL

Jeff Wan, Mayor

HHEH#HHH
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Agenda Item: 4(b)
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STAFF REPORT

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS
FROM: JENNIFER GIANTVALLEY, ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN
DATE: 2/7/2023

SUBJECT: FINANCIAL DEMANDS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended the City Council, by minute action, approve the financial demands and obligations of

the City for the purchase of services and goods in the ordinary course of operations.

Attached Report Purpose Amount
Obligations Accounts Payable $ 348,251.68
Payroll Reconciliation Summary Payroll, Taxes $ 81,802.95
Total Required $ 430,054.63
Attachments:
1. Obligation report for 2/7/23 (2 pages)

2. Payroll Reconciliation Summary report PPE 1/22/23 (2 pages)



City of Clayton Obligations for 2/7/23

Vendor name Invoice date Invoice number Invoice description Amount Payment method
American Fidelity Assurance Company 01/22/2023 2151485A FSA PPE 1/22/23 $80.00 Bank draft
American Fidelity Assurance Company 01/31/2023 D540203 Supplemental Insurance January 2023 $625.16 Bank draft
CalPERS Health 01/17/2023 17058308 Medical February 2023 $33,116.17 Bank draft
CalPERS Retirement 01/22/2023 012223 Retirement PPE 1/22/23 $18,727.64 Bank draft
Mission Square Retirement 01/22/2023 012223 457 Plan contributions PPE 1/22/23 $1,263.46 Bank draft
Nationwide 01/22/2023 012223 457 Plan contribution PPE 1/22/23 $500.00 Bank draft
Wex Bank-Fleet Cards 01/25/2023 86654375 Fleet fuel stmt end 1/25/23 $4,640.49 Bank draft
Alameda County Sheriff's Office 01/27/2023 2023 Training class-Patrol Rifle $339.00 Check
All City Management Services, Inc. 12/28/2022 82407 School crossing guard svcs 12/11/22-12/24/22 $2,105.28 Check
AnchorCM 01/23/2023 22-003-4296 Engineering Svcs May 2022 $12,000.00 Check
AnchorCM 01/25/2023 22-003-4499 Engineering Svcs January 2023 $37,630.25 Check
Apex Technology Management 01/20/2023 APXQ30249 Network cables $36.27 Check
AT&T 01/07/2023 1224416700 HH Internet $331.68 Check
AT&T (CalNet3) 01/22/2023 19395599 Phones 12/22/22-1/21/23 $1,246.05 Check
AT&T (HH Internet) 01/21/2023 012123 Hoyer Hall Internet 1/22/23-2/21/23 $19.99 Check
Bay Area News Group 12/31/2022 1362060 Legal Ad for December 2022 $614.90 Check
Best Best & Kreiger LLP 01/13/2023 955329-955333 Legal svcs December 2022 $16,333.78 Check
Bob Murray & Associates 01/16/2023 9912 Executive search services $11,483.89 Check
CCWD 01/06/2023 010623 Water 11/2/22-1/6/23 $22,734.89 Check
City of Concord 01/09/2023 95890 Dispatch svcs February 2023 $26,921.86 Check
City of Pittsburg 01/27/2023 HTA PD Training - Human Trafficking Awareness $125.00 Check
Comcast Business (PD) 01/01/2023 162127998 PD Internet December 2022 $988.68 Check
Computershare 01/24/2023 CLAY 02032023 Lydia Ln Sewer Interest payment $3,550.29 Check
Contra Costa County Animal Svcs Dept 01/05/2023 ASD M7168 Animal services Q3 FY 2023 $22,451.50 Check
Contra Costa County Clerk Elections Division 01/23/2023 2009 11/8/22 General Election $12,096.26 Check
Contra Costa County Public Works Dept 01/18/2023 705596 Traffic signal maintenance December 2022 $4,743.98 Check
De Lage Landen Financial Services, Inc. 11/16/2022 78202324 PD copier lease February 2023 $123.52 Check
De Lage Landen Financial Services, Inc. 01/21/2023 78821978 Copier lease February 2023 $1,004.49 Check
Dillon Electric Inc 01/13/2023 4793 Street light repairs 1/12/23 $864.26 Check
Geoconsultants, Inc. 01/13/2023 19425 Well monitoring December 2022 $1,546.50 Check
Geoconsultants, Inc. 01/31/2023 19439 Well monitoring January 2023 $1,546.50 Check
Globalstar LLC 01/16/2023 44594761 Sat phone 1/16/23-2/15/23 $136.95 Check
Govlinvest, Inc 01/13/2023 2022-4268 FD Consulting November and December 2022 $15,750.00 Check
HdL Coren & Cone 01/24/2023 SINO24803 Contract svcs Property Tax Q3 FY 23 $2,025.00 Check
Health Care Dental Trust 01/24/2023 326473 Dental February 2023 $1,648.14 Check
J&R Floor Services 02/01/2023 One2023 Janitorial svcs January 2023 $4,988.00 Check
JJR Enterprises for Caltronics Business Systems 01/18/2023 3675939 /Copier usage 12/18/22-1/17/23 $507.32 Check
Kim Trupiano 01/24/2023 1/18-1/20/23 Mileage/Meal reimbursement $121.28 Check
LarryLogic Productions 01/11/2023 2075 City council meeting production 1/10/23 $680.00 Check
LarryLogic Productions 01/12/2023 2077 Planning Commision Meeting Production 1/11/23 $160.00 Check
LarryLogic Productions 01/18/2023 2078 City council meeting production 1/17/23 $560.00 Check
LarryLogic Productions 01/24/2023 2080 Production Budget /Audit Committee meeting 1/23/23 $440.00 Check
League of CA cities 01/01/2023 643249 Member dues, calendar year 2023 $6,546.00 Check
Lexipol LLC 12/01/2022 INVLEX14162 Annual Law enforcement policy & training bulletins $7,999.02 Check
Moore lacofano Golstman, Inc 01/13/2023 78923 Housing Element svcs December 2022 $1,496.25 Check
MSR Mechanical, LLC 01/09/2023 SVC006995 CH Qrtrly HVAC/Exhaust Fan PM, January 2023 $573.00 Check
MSR Mechanical, LLC 11/30/2022 SVC6651,6637,6735 [Library service calls, CH HVAC maint 12/22 $5,478.60 Check
Municipal Resource Group LLC 01/24/2023 03-23-28 Organizational Assessment 22283-CLT $1,743.75 Check
Pacific Telemanagement Svc 01/26/2023 2100097 Courtyard pay phone February 2023 $70.00 Check




City of Clayton Obligations for 2/7/23

PG&E 01/22/2023 2572177359-3 1/22/23 |Energy (Gas) 12/20/22-1/20/23 $720.09 Check
PG&E 01/18/2023 7293447797-6 1/18/23 |Energy 12/14/22-1/12/23 $30,049.35 Check
Pond M Solutions 01/12/2023 7355 Replaced burned out sub-pump for fountain $2,658.76 Check
Precision Civil Engineering (PCE) 01/16/2023 27657 21-359 Pre-approved ADU Plans $6,407.50 Check
Prestige Printing & Graphics 01/11/2023 82201 PD Business cards $236.21 Check
Prestige Printing & Graphics 01/11/2023 82246 Council Business cards $401.63 Check
Prestige Printing & Graphics 01/11/2023 82247 Business cards $167.25 Check
Rex Lock & Safe, Inc. 01/18/2023 134966 Re-program timer on bathroom doors @ The Grove Park $250.00 Check
RIPALog, LLC 01/31/2023 2022060133 RIPALog service & subscription FY 23 $2,400.00 Check
Stericycle Inc 02/01/2023 3006330462 Medical waste disposal $71.66 Check
T J Communications 01/26/2023 1533 CH IT Installation $4,803.73 Check
T Mobile 01/02/2023 981497076 12/22 PD cell phones December 2022 $522.17 Check
Talia B Rogers 01/23/2023 HH012223 Deposit refund $217.00 Check
Texas Life Insurance Company 01/17/2023 SMOF1B20230116001 [Supplemental insurance $42.25 Check
Vision Service Plan (CA) 01/18/2023 817004326 Vision February 2023 $124.80 Check
William Polson 01/23/2023 CAP0471 Deposit refund $2,886.57 Check
Workers.com 11/11/2022 134891 Seasonal workers week end 12/11/22 $4,409.15 Check
Workers.com 12/23/2022 135199 Seasonal workers week end 12/18/22 $1,168.51 Check

$348,251.68




Check Date: 01/27/2023

Payroll Summar elof2
y y Process: 2023012701 P
City of Clayton Pay Period: 01/09/2023 to 01/22/2023
Payroll Totals
Payroll Checks Check Type Count Net Check Dir Dep Amount Net Amount
Regular 26 0.00 62,544.21 62,544.21
Totals 26 0.00 62,544.21 62,544.21 — 62,544.21
Payroll Checks Check Type Agency Type Count Net Check Dir Dep Amount Net Amount
Agency EFSDU 0.00 358.15 358.15
Agency Regular 0.00 663.50 663.50
Totals 0.00 1,021.65 1,021.65 — 1,021.65
Total Net Payroll Liability 0.00 63,565.86 63,565.86 — 63,565.86
Tax Liability
CA and Related Taxes Tax Id Rate Frequency Wage Cap Wages EE Amount ER Amount
CA SDI - Employee EXEMPT Semi-Weekly 89,623.39 89,623.39
CdiforniaSITW Semi-Weekly 88,109.93 88,109.93 3,803.56
Totals 3,803.56 0.00 — 3,803.56
CASUI and Related Taxes Tax Id Rate Frequency Wage Cap Wages EE Amount ER Amount
CA Edu & Training 0.001000  Quarterly 89,623.39 60,553.55 60.55
California SUI 0.020000  Quarterly 89,623.39 60,553.55 1,211.07
Totals 0.00 1,271.62 — 1,271.62
FITW and Related Taxes Tax Id Rate Frequency Wage Cap Wages EE Amount ER Amount
Federal Income Tax Semi-Weekly 88,109.93 88,109.93  10,562.82
Medicare Semi-Weekly 89,623.39 89,623.39 1,299.55
Medicare - Employer Semi-Weekly 89,623.39 89,623.39 1,299.54
Totals 11,862.37 1,299.54 — 13,161.91
Total Tax Liability 15,665.93 2,571.16 — 18,237.09
Total Payroll Liability 81,802.95 N 81,802.95
Transfers
Type Date Source Account Amount
Dir Dep 1/26/2023 62,544.21
Tax 1/26/2023 18,237.09
Trust Agency 1/26/2023 1,021.65
Totals Transfers 81,802.95 — 81,802.95
h . Paylocity Corporation User: JGiantvalley
A Payloc“-y (888) 873-8205
\ V/ Run on 1/23/2023 at 3:20 PM




Payroll Summary

Check Date: 01/27/2023
Process. 2023012701

Page 2 of 2

City of Clayton Pay Period: 01/09/2023 to 01/22/2023
Tax Deposits
Required Tax Deposits Tax DueOn Amount
( Deposit made by Service Bureau) CaliforniaSITW 2/1/2023 3,803.56
( Deposit made by Service Bureau) Federal Income Tax 2/1/2023 13,161.91
( Deposit made by Service Bureau ) California SUI 5/1/2023 1,271.62
Total Tax Deposits 18,237.09
h . Paylocity Corporation User: JGiantvalley
PGY|OC|'|'Y® (888) 873-8205
\ V/ Run on 1/23/2023 at 3:20 PM




Agenda ltem: 4(c)

“JOITY OF CLAYTON

- 5
. Fownded 1857, .

T T
rpamﬂ]?afﬁ,

Py

AGENDA REPORT

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS
FROM: CITY MANAGER
DATE: February 7, 2023

SUBJECT: Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Clayton Allowing for
Video and Teleconference Meetings as Needed during the COVID-19 State
of Emergency Under AB 361

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution of the City Council allowing for video and teleconference meetings as
needed during the COVID-19 state of emergency under AB 361.

BACKGROUND

Last year, the State Legislature passed, and Governor Newsom signed AB 361 which
continues many of the provisions related to the Brown Act that were in place under
Executive Orders, which expired September 30, 2021 that allowed for video and
teleconferencing during the state of emergency. Since AB 361 has been signed into
law, the City can continue to meet virtually until such time as the Governor declares the
State of Emergency due to COVID-19 over and measures to promote social distancing
are no longer recommended by the County Health Officer.

On September 20, 2021, February 2, 2022, March 1, 2022, April 15, 2022, June 14,
2022, July 5, 2022, August 9, 2022, September 1, 2022, October 4, 2022, December 7,
2022, January 5, 2023 and February 1, 2023, the Contra Costa County Health Officer
issued recommendations for safely holding public meetings and continues to encourage
on-line meetings over in-person public meetings if feasible. If in-person meetings occur,
the County Health Officer recommends physical distancing of six feet of separation
between all attendees to the extent possible. The proposed resolution provides that the
City Council and all subsidiary City boards and commissions may choose to hold fully
virtual video and teleconference meetings while the state of emergency is still in effect
and physical distancing is recommended.



Subject: Resolution Allowing for Video and Teleconference Meetings during the COVID-19 State of Emergency
Under AB 361

Date: February 7, 2023

Page 2 of 2

In order to continue to be able to hold video and teleconference meetings as needed for
COVID/public-health related reasons, the City Council will need to review and make
findings every thirty days that the state of emergency continues to directly impact the
ability of the members to meet safely in person and that state or local officials continue
to impose or recommend measures to promote physical distancing.

FISCAL IMPACT
None.

Attachments

Resolution of the City Council Allowing for Video and Teleconference Meetings during the
COVID-19 State of Emergency Under AB 361

Recommendations for Safely Holding Public Meetings (issued 02/01/2023 by Contra Costa
County Health Officer)



RESOLUTION NO. ##-2023

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLAYTON
ALLOWING FOR VIDEO AND TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS DURING THE
COVID-19 STATE OF EMERGENCY UNDER AB 361

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Governor of the State of California proclaimed
a State of Emergency for COVID-19;

WHEREAS, AB 361 was passed by the State Legislature and signed by Governor
Newsom and went into effect immediately and allows the City to continue to meet virtually
until such time as the Governor declares the State of Emergency due to COVID-19 over
and measures to promote physical distancing are no longer recommended,;

WHEREAS, on September 20, 2021, February 2, 2022, March 1, 2022, April 15,
2022, June 14, 2022, July 5, 2022, August 9, 2022, September 1, 2022, October 4, 2022,
December 7, 2022, January 5, 2023, and February 1, 2023, the Contra Costa County
Health Officer issued recommendations for safely holding public meetings and
encourages on-line meetings if feasible and if in person meetings occur then recommends
physical distancing of six feet of separation to the extent possible and masking for all
attendees;

WHEREAS, in light of this recommendation, the City Council desires for itself and
for all other City legislatives bodies that are subject to the Brown Act to be able to choose
to meet via video and/or teleconference as necessary; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to AB 361 the City Council will review the findings required
to be made at least every 30 days.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the City Council hereby finds on behalf of
itself and all other City legislative bodies: (1) a state of emergency has been proclaimed
by the Governor; (2) the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the
City’s legislative bodies to meet safely in person; and (3) local health officials continue to
recommend measures to promote physical distancing.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council and all other City legislative
bodies may continue to meet via video and/or teleconference as needed during the
COVID-19 emergency.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Clayton City Council, State of California, on this 7" day
of February 2023, by the following vote:

Resolution ##-2023 AB 361 February 7, 2023



AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:
THE CITY COUNCIL OF CLAYTON,
CA
Jeff Wan, Mayor

ATTEST:

Janet Calderon, City Clerk

Resolution ##-2023 AB 361 February 7, 2023
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Recommendations for safely holding public meetings

Each local government agency is authorized to determine whether to hold public meetings in person,
on-line (teleconferencing only), or via a combination of methods. The following are recommendations
from the Contra Costa County Health Officer to minimize the risk of COVID 19 transmission during a
public meeting.

1. Online meetings (i.e. teleconferencing meetings) are encouraged, where practical, as these
meetings present the lowest risk of transmission of SARS CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID 19. This is
particularly important when community prevalence rates are high. Our current trends as of February 1,
2023 in Covid-19 case rate, test positivity, Covid-19 hospitalizations, and Covid-19 wastewater
surveillance are decreasing, but there continues to be COVID-19 in the community and changes in case
rate, test positivity, COVID-19 hospitalization and wastewater surveillance may change or increase
rapidly. In addition to this, the predominant variant of Covid-19 being identified continues to be the
Omicron variant and it’s subvariants the impact of which on the spread of Covid-19 has shown to
dramatically increase COVID-19 transmission.

2. If a local agency determines to hold in-person meetings, offering the public the opportunity to
attend via a call-in option or an internet-based service option is recommended, when possible, to give
those at higher risk of and/or higher concern about COVID-19 an alternative to participating in person.

3. A written safety protocol should be developed and followed. It is recommended that the
protocol require social distancing, where feasible —i.e. six feet of separation between attendees; and
consider requiring or strongly encouraging face masking of all attendees and encouraging attendees to
be up-to-date on their COVID-19 vaccine.

4. Seating arrangements should allow for staff and members of the public to easily maintain at
least six-foot distance from one another at all practicable times.

5. Consider holding public meetings outdoors. Increasing scientific consensus is that outdoor
airflow reduces the risk of COVID-19 transmission compared to indoor spaces. Hosting events outdoors
also may make it easier to space staff and members of the public at least 6 feet apart. If unable to host
outdoors, consider ways to increase ventilation and flow of the indoor space to reduce the risk of
COVID-19 while indoors.

6. Current evidence is unclear as to the added benefit of temperature checks in addition to
symptom checks. We encourage focus on symptom checks as they may screen out individuals with other
Covid-19 symptoms besides fever and help reinforce the message to not go out in public if you are not
feeling well.

7. Consider a voluntary attendance sheet with names and contact information to assist in contact
tracing of any cases linked to a public meeting.

Revised 2-1-2023

SWW
Sefanit Mekuria, MD, MPH
Deputy Health Officer, Contra Costa County

Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services ® Contra Costa Emergency Medical Services » Contra Costa Environmental Health & Hazardous Materials Programs

* Contra Costa Health, Housing & Homeless Services ® Contra Costa Health Plan ® Contra Costa Public Health  Contra Costa Regional Medical Center & Health Centers »


https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments-02-26-2021.aspx#:~:text=Interim%20guidance%20for%20Ventilation%2C%20Filtration%2C%20and%20Air%20Quality,or%20other%20occupancy%20or%20use%20to%20occur%20indoors.
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STAFF REPORT

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

FROM: NITISH SHARMA, FINANCE DIRECTOR (INTERIM)
BRYCE ROJAS, CPA, AUDITOR

DATE: FEBRUARY 7, 2023

SUBJECT: AUDITED ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT OF
THE CITY OF CLAYTON FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,
2022

RECOMMENDATION

It is respectfully recommended that the City Council:

1. Receive a presentation on the City of Clayton’s Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report, including the unmodified opinion of the Independent Auditors Report, issued
by Cropper Rowe, LLP for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022; and

2. Accept the City of Clayton’s Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year 2021/22.

BACKGROUND

The City’s independent audit firm, Cropper Rowe, LLP, has issued their opinion on the
City of Clayton’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 (FY
2021/22). In their opinion:

“the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Clayton, California as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.”
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It is the responsibility of City management to ensure the financial statements are presented
fairly in accordance with GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles). City
management is also responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The responsibility of the
City’s independent auditors it to express opinions on the City’s financial statements based
on its audit performed in accordance with generally accepted audit standards (GAAS)
issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) as well as
generally accepted government auditing standards (GAGAS), or “yellow book”
standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

DISCUSSION

Fund Financial Statements (Governmental Funds)

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $17,172,907. Of this amount, $5,744,867 (33.5%) is unassigned;
$173,471 (1.0%) is in non-spendable form; $3,330,153 (19.4%) is assigned for specific
purposes; $6,719,595 (39.1%) is restricted by law, regulation, or other outside contractual
agreements; and $1,024,821 (7.0%) is committed for specific expenditures in the future.

General Fund

The City’s General Fund reported an increase in fund balance of $294,464 (4.0%) in the
current fiscal year. This modest increase is mostly attributable to an increase in property
taxes, special parcel taxes and assessments as well as the influx of American Rescue
Plan Act funding, offsetting a decrease in investment earnings (primarily due to market
rate adjustments). The total fund balance of the General Fund is $6,413,357 as of June
30, 2022, of which $5,744,867 (89.6%) is reported as unassigned and available for
appropriation. This unassigned fund balance is .97 times the size of the General Fund’s
adopted operating budget for the upcoming fiscal year.

It is important to note that the total general fund expenditures were reported as an
aggregate in the ACFR. The table below illustrates the expenditures reported by General
Fund Account Group for the year ended June 30, 2022.
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General Fund Account Group
Pandemic
General Recovery
Operating Fund | Rainy Day Fund Reserve Total
General Government $ 1447700 | $ 26,000 ($ 1,096,717 2570417
Public Safety 2684319 2684319
Public Works 333,423 333423
Community and Economic
Development 299175 299175
Parks and Recreation 336,592 336592
Capital Outlay 22,168 22,168
Total Expenses $ 5123377 | $ 26,000 ($ 1,006,717 6,246,094

Landscape Maintenance District

Community Facilities District No. 2007-1, referred to as the Landscape Maintenance
District special revenue fund, reported a decrease in fund balance of $447,353 (41.2%)
in the current fiscal year. This decrease in fund balance is largely attributable to increases
in operating costs such as water service and weed abatement, as well as an increase in
project costs/capital outlay costs, primarily for upgraded irrigation controllers. Total fund
balance of the Landscape Maintenance District is $638,533 as of June 30, 2022, of which
100% is reported as assigned or restricted for the following year’s operating budget.

Successor Housing Agency

The Successor Housing Agency special revenue fund reported an increase in fund
balance of $187,452 (3.4%) in the current fiscal year. This increase in fund balance
resulted primarily from unspent program revenue on housing loan repayments as well as
unrealized gains on the inventory of affordable income housing. Total fund balance of the
Successor Housing Agency is $5,617,695 as of June 30, 2022, which is classified entirely
as restricted.

Endeavor Hall Enterprise Fund

Consistent with the prior year, the Endeavor Hall rental facility is the City’s only “business-
type” enterprise fund reported in the ACFR. Total business-type expenses decreased
20.4% from $73,117 in the prior year to $60,694 in the current year. This decrease is
largely attributable to the decrease in general and administrative costs of the Endeavor
Hall rental facility. Total services revenue increased significantly from $-1,442 in the prior
year to $16,847 in the current year due to the increase in rental activity. Net position of
business-type activities declined $43,847 to a total of $880,139 at June 30, 2022 due to
charges for services being insufficient to cover the annual depreciation expense and
general operating expenses of underlying Endeavor Hall rental facility assets.
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Rainy Day Fund

The Rainy Day Fund (Fund 110) was established during the FY2020/21 fiscal year with the
goal of appropriating money to set aside funds to capture any annual surplus identified
through the annual audit for the City to earmark towards one time unexpected costs that
may arise throughout a budgetary year. Per GASB 54, the Rainy Day funds are presented
in the financial statements as part of the general fund.

Pandemic Reserve

The Pandemic Recovery Reserve (Fund 111) was established by the City Council to
capture programmatic funding decisions associated with the American Rescue Plan Act
funds the City has received. For the initial tranche of $1,467,024 (and planned for the
tranche to be received in July 2022), the City Council has chosen to transfer the funds to
the City's General Fund to pay for public safety services. This funding for public safety
then allows the transfer of an equal amount from the General Fund to the Pandemic
Recovery Reserve. The funds in the Pandemic Recovery Reserve can be used for any
valid general government purpose.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are presented on an “economic resources”
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, and unlike the
“‘modified accrual” governmental fund financial statements discussed previously, the
government-wide statements report long-term assets and liabilities in the Statement of Net
Position. In the long run, increases or decreases in net position serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the City of Clayton is improving or deteriorating. The City’s
total net position was $45,759,874 at June 30, 2022, which is an increase of $392,782
from the prior year’s net position at June 30, 2021.

Of the City’s total net position, $9,890,048 (21.6%) represents resources that are subject
to external restrictions on how they may be used. The balance of the unrestricted net
position of $5,744,418 (12.6%) may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors. City revenues for the year, including both governmental and
business-type activities, were $9,359,704, while expenses totaled $9,021,834, resulting
in a net increase in net position of $337,870 excluding transfers, extraordinary and special
items.

FISCAL IMPACT

The acceptance of the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022,
does not have any direct fiscal impact on the City but reflects the overall financial health of
the City.

Attachments:
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1. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Independent Auditors’ Report for the Year Ended June 30,
2022

2. Auditors’ Required Communication to Those Charged with Governance Near the End of an Audit (AU-C
260)

3. PowerPoint Presentation for the City Council
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City of Clayton, California
Annual Financial Report
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January 23, 2023

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

City of Clayton

We are pleased to submit the City of Clayton’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Since its incorporation, the City has submitted an annual audited
Financial Report to the City Council and its citizens in accordance with California Government Code
section 25253. The ACFR provides the public, businesses, property owners, investors and all interested
parties with an overview of the City’s finances. It is important to note the acronym for this report has
changed from CAFR to ACFR as the prior acronym can be considered an offensive racial slur and is no
longer used. The information in this ACFR is prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) and includes an “unmodified opinion” (the highest rating) on the report by an
independent certified public accounting firm, Cropper Rowe, LLP.

Although we rely on the standards and expertise of these independent auditors, the responsibility for the
accuracy and fair representation of the ACFR ultimately rests with City management. We believe the data
presented in this Report is accurate in all material respects and all statements and disclosures have been
included necessary for the reader to obtain a thorough understanding of the City’s financial activities.
Management of the City has established an internal control framework that is designed both to protect
the City’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile reliable and timely information for the
preparation of the City’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal
controls should not outweigh its benefits, the City’s frameéwork of internal controls has been designed to
provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that its financial statements will be free from material
misstatements.

For readers interested in a more detailed review of the City’s financial statements, a section in the ACFR
called “Management Discussion and Analysis” (MD&A) has been included in accordance with
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements - And
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — For State and Local Governments. The MD&A recounts the
financial highlights of the City and provides additional analyses on the variances and trends reported as
part of the financial statements. The MD&A further discloses significant items impacting the financial
condition of the City and is designed to be read in conjunction with this Letter of Transmittal.

City Profile

The City of Clayton was incorporated in 1964 and is located in Contra Costa County, a suburban region
in the eastern portion of the San Francisco-Bay Area. Pursuant to its adopted budget for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2022, the City has a permanent staff of 27.4 full-time equivalent employees which serves
approximately 11,585 residents in a land area of approximately 4 square miles. Nestled in a small valley
at the northern base of Mt. Diablo, the boundaries of the City are mostly developed with a
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City Profile, continued

strong community emphasis on open space preservation and maintenance of an extensive network of
trails. The City continues to show strength as a safe community with attractive residential neighborhoods
as a gateway to the fast paced and robust Bay Area economy.

The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides many essential public
services to the community. The City is governed by a five-member City Council elected at large, serving
staggered terms of four years. The Mayor and Vice Mayor are selected by the City Council each year from
its membership and serve one-year terms. The City Council is responsible for setting policies, adopting
City ordinances, resolutions, the annual budget, appointing commissions and committees, and hiring the
City Manager and City Attorney, among other key duties. The City Manager is responsible for
implementing the City Council’s policies, ordinances and directives, overseeing the daily operations of
the City, and appointing all department heads and through them all other employees of the City.

As presented in the City's government-wide statement of activities, pursuant to GASBS 34, the City’s
numerous departments and restricted-use funds accounting for public services are consolidated into
higher-level programs, which include: public safety, public works, parks and recreation services,
community and economic development, and general government. The public safety program is
composed of an in-house police department, staffed with eleven (11) full-time sworn police officers and
two (2) administrative personnel dedicated to the function of police services. Public works tracks the
maintenance of public landscaping (i.e. street medians and shoulders, sub-division entryways, etc.),
facilities, transportation infrastructure (i.e. streets, lighting, traffic signals, etc.), as well as contract City
engineering services for management of the City’s Capital Improvement Program as well as land
development regulatory needs. In their capacity of providing parks and recreation services, the City’s in-
house maintenance department oversees the maintenance of the Clayton Community Library, the
Clayton Community Park, The Grove Park, various neighborhood parks, and the historic Endeavor Hall
rental facility. The community and economic development program consists of two (2) in-house staff
providing planning and land-use regulatory services as well as the functions of economic development
and affordable housing. Finally, the general government program reports legislative and support costs
indispensable in providing in-house public services and maintains compliance an ever-expanding list of
legal, fiscal and other statutory requirements imposed by the State of California.

The City’s fiscal year runs from July 1stthrough June 30wm. Each year, the City Manager presents an annual
budget to the City Council for adoption by Resolution on or before June 30% in accordance with Clayton
Municipal Code section 3.02.040. On an interim basis the budget is monitored continually with the
budgetary level of control maintained at the fund level.

Economic Condition and Outlook

Essentially a cul-de-sac hugging the base of acclaimed Mt. Diablo, Clayton maintains a small-town
atmosphere while its relative proximity to California State Highway 24 and neighboring city BART
stations make it ideal for commuters. In addition, the semi-rural setting, low crime rate and excellent
middle and elementary public schools make Clayton attractive to families of all types.
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Economic Condition and Outlook, continued

Its residents are generally highly educated with approximately 57.8% of adults greater than age 25
having a bachelor’s degree or higher. In June of 2022, the unemployment rate of the City was 3.0%,
compared to 3.20% and 4.0% for Contra Costa County and the State of California, respectively. In 2020
the median household income in the City was $153,607 compared to $87,355 for the state. The median
age of Clayton residents is 43.1 as of the 2021 calendar year. The median sales price of homes in Clayton
at June 30, 2022 was $1,050,000, a 8.7% year over year decrease. Despite this decline, property tax and
sales & use tax revenues remain relatively strong.

In order, the City General Fund’s top revenue sources are: in-lieu vehicle license fees (VLF - paid
from the state’s portion of property taxes); secured property taxes; franchise fees; and sales & use
taxes (including the state-allocated “triple flip” prior to the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017). The
following chart illustrates the ten-year trend of these four major revenue sources for the City taken
from the 2022-23 Adopted Budget:
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Altogether, these four primary revenue sources (Property Tax In-Lieu 22.1%, Property Taxes 20.6%,
Franchise Fees 10.7%, Sales and Use Taxes 10.5%) comprise 63.9% of General Fund revenues per the
adopted budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. A non-recurring spike was realized in sales
and use taxes six years ago in the year ended June 30, 2017 attributable to the City receiving a final
true-up Triple Flip allocation from the state following the statutory dissolution of this process
effective January 1, 2017. Accordingly, the following year realized a dip back to “normal” sales &
use tax trend levels. In the long-run however, given the suburban composition of the City and its
geographic boundaries limiting future development, management anticipates slow growth for the
next ten years in sales & use taxes and franchise fees and moderate growth in property tax revenue
(including in-lieu VLF property taxes received from the state). With increasing telecommunications
technologies, cable-based franchise fees could be a declining or at-risk revenue, while other factors
such as weather patterns and sustainable energy trends could impact similar franchise fee revenue.
Given the recent U.S. Supreme Court South Dakota v. Wayfair ruling, it is reasonably possible the City
will see an increase in sales & use tax revenue in forthcoming years with the definition of eligible
taxable sales transactions now potentially including all online sales where “substantial nexus”
requirements exist with online sellers in California.

Long-Term Financial Planning

As of the year ended June 30, 2022, the City of Clayton’s financial condition remains sound. An
indicator of financial condition is the level of fund balances, both reserved and unreserved, in the
City’s General Fund. The City Council has directed an absolute minimum reserve of $250,000 as its
never-to-be-expended “catastrophic reserve.” In practice, due to the effectiveness in fiscal
management, this policy has been easily achieved, indicating perhaps this floor requirement should
be elevated in the future. However, the standing Policy Goal of the City Council is to establish and
retain an undesignated reserve of 50% the annual General Fund operating budget. At June 30, 2022,
the total unassigned General Fund reserve balance is $6,068,266 or .97 times the size of the adopted
General Fund operating budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. This means in an emergency
scenario, the City could operate over an entire year on reserves alone.

The City of Clayton maintains a five-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP), which serves as its
planning document to ensure its infrastructure is well maintained. The City prioritizes roads for
maintenance and reconstruction based on the relative pavement condition index, with other
infrastructure and facility improvement projects prioritized at the discretion of the City Council. Over
the course of the last 10 years the City has invested approximately $1.0 million into facility and
infrastructure capital improvements, funded by Highway User Tax Apportionments (i.e. HUTA or
“gas taxes”), local Measure ] taxes, redevelopment property tax increment allocations (prior to the
dissolution of the Clayton Redevelopment Agency in 2012), and other state and federal grants. For
the upcoming fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, the City’s CIP is expected to invest an additional
$1,362,697 into transportation and general infrastructure maintenance and improvement needs of the
community.
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OUR MISSION

To be of exemplary service to the Clayton community with an emphasis on:
» Health and safety

» Responsive customer service
» Highly trained team of employees
» A cooperative work environment

OUR VALUES

» Courtesy » Inclusiveness

» Creativity » Informed risk taking
» Diversity » Open communication
» Employee participation » Professionalism

» Ethical behavior » Trustworthiness

» Fiscal responsibility

OUR VISION

The City of Clayton organization will be recognized as a premier small city.
Customer service will be our hallmark; organizational processes will be a model
of efficiency and effectiveness; innovation will be common place; and excellence
of work product will be the norm. The employees will enjoy their work
environment, and each will be a valued and respected member in his or her field
of work. All residents and the City Council will be proud of their City government.
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Regional Map of Clayton, California
And Nearby Cities
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CROPPER ROWE, LLP
2 (925) 932-3860 tel
R (529 476.980 o

WWW.Cropperaccountancy.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council
City of Clayton, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Clayton,
Clayton, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City of Clayton’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Clayton, as of June 30, 2022, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the City of Clayton and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and 'maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Clayton’s ability to
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
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from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Clayton’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the City of Clayton’s ability to continue as a going concern for
a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, pension plan funding status, other postemployment benefits plan funding status,
and budgetary comparison information on pages 21-31 and 103-111 be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Clayton’s basic financial statements. The accompanying combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
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are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the

basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover
the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31,
2023, on our consideration of the City of Clayton’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City of Clayton’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering City of Clayton’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Cnoror Vo LLF

CROPPER ROWE, LLP
Walnut Creek, California
January 31, 2023
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
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Management of the City of Clayton (the "City") provides this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
the City's Basic Financial Statements for readers of the City's financial statements. This narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City is for its fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. We
encourage readers to consider this information in conjunction with the additional information that is
furnished with the City's financial statements, which follow.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Government -Wide Highlichts

Net Position - The assets of the City of Clayton exceeded its liabilities at the close of the year ended June
30, 2022, by $45,759,874. Of this amount, $5,744,418 was reported as "unrestricted net position" and may
be used to meet the ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Changes in Net Position - The City's total net position increased by $337,870 in the fiscal year ending June
30, 2022. Net position of governmental activities increased by $381,717, while net position of business-
type activities decreased by $43,847.

Major Fund Hichlichts

Governmental Funds - As of the year ended June 30, 2022, the City's governmental funds reported a
combined ending fund balance of $17,172,907. Of this amount $5,744,867 represents "unassigned fund
balances" available for appropriation.

General Fund - The unassigned fund balance of the General Fund on June 30, 2022 was $5,744,867, while
the non-spendable and committed fund balances were $173,471 and $495,019 respectively.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Clayton's basic financial
statements. The City of Clayton's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains required supplementary information and supplemental information in addition to
the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City of Clayton's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Clayton's assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Clayton is improving or
deteriorating.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
Government-wide Financial Statements, Continued

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e. g.
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Clayton that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Clayton include general
government, public safety, public works, community and economic development, and parks and
recreation services. The business-type activities of the City of Clayton include the activities of the
Endeavor Hall enterprise fund.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Clayton, like other state and local governments,
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All
of the funds of the City of Clayton can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary
funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

Fund Financial Statements, Continued

The City of Clayton maintains fifteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the government funds balance sheet and governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Landscape Maintenance District,

Housing Successor Agency, and Capital Improvement Program, all of which are reported as major funds.

Proprietary Funds

The City of Clayton maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
City of Clayton uses an enterprise fund to account for its Endeavor Hall activities. Internal service funds
are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City of Clayton
various functions. City of Clayton uses three internal service funds to account for its capital equipment
replacement program, self-insurance activities, and extraordinary employer pension contribution
fluctuations. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather that business-type
functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The City’s sole enterprise fund is considered to be a major fund. The internal service
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds

The City is the fiscal agent for benefit assessment districts and other parties holding amounts collected
which await payment as directed. The City’s fiduciary activities are reported in the separate statement
of fiduciary net position and the agency funds statement of assets and liabilities. These activities are
excluded from the City’s other financial statements because the City is acting as a trustee for these funds
and cannot use these assets to finance its own operations. The City’s fiduciary funds include a private-
purpose trust fund to account for the activities of the City of Clayton Redevelopment Successor Agency.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in

the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found
on pages 55-101 of this report.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees as well as budgetary information for the
General Fund and each of the major governmental funds.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS
Analysis of Overall Net Position and Results of Operations

As noted previously, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. The City’s total net position was $45,759,874 at June 30, 2022, which is an increase of $392,782
from the prior year’s restated net position at June 30, 2021.

The largest portion of the City’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e. g. land, buildings,
etc. ) net of any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens and these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The following is condensed comparative
Statements of Net Position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021:

Business- Business-
Governmental Governmental Type Type
Activities Activities Activities Activities - Total Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Assets
Current Assets $ 14,773,722 $ 14,812,813 $ (120,893) $ (112174) $ 14,652,829 $ 14,700,639
Noncurrent Assets 6,482,003 6,462,021 - - 6,482,003 6,462,021
Capital Assets 29,116,205 28,793,685 1,009,203 1,038,076 30,125,408 29,831,761
Total Assets 50,371,930 50,068,519 888,310 925,902 51,260,240 50,994,421
Deferred outflows 1,285,641 1,051,589 - - 1,285,641 1,051,589
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 640,113 362,937 8,171 1,916 648,284 364,853
Noncurrent Liabilities 3,666,339 5,944,104 - - 3,666,339 5,944,104
Total Liabilities 4,306,452 6,307,041 8,171 1,916 4,314,623 6,308,957
Deferred inflows 2,471,384 369,961 - - 2,471,384 369,961
Net Position
Net investment in
capital assets 29,116,205 28,793,685 1,009,203 1,038,076 30,125,408 29,831,761
Restricted 9,890,048 13,156,670 - - 9,890,048 13,156,670
Unrestricted 5,873,482 2,492,751 (129,064) (114,090) 5,744,418 2,378,661

Total net position $ 44879735 _$ 44443106 _$ 880139 _$ 923986 _$ 45759874 _$ 45,367,092
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS, Continued
Analysis of Overall Net Position and Results of Operations, Continued

Of the City’s total net position, $9,890,048 (21.6%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The balance of the unrestricted net position of $5,744,418 (12.6%)
may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. City revenues for the year,
including both governmental and business-type activities, were $9,359,704, while expenses totaled
$9,021,834, resulting in a net increase in net position of $337,870 excluding transfers, extraordinary and
special items. This net increase was primarily attributable to a increase in net position of governmental
activities, which is discussed in greater detail in the following section.

The following is a recap of the City’s Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021:

Business- Business-
Governmental Governmental Type Type
Activities Activities Activities Activities Total Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for Services $ 1002338 $ 961,910 $ 16,847 $ (1,442) $ 1,019,185 $ 960,468
Operating grants and contributions 2,755,382 893,718 - - 2,755,382 893,718
Capital grants and contributions 120,774 42,363 - - 120,774 42,363
Total program revenues 3,878,494 1,897,991 16,847 (1,442) 3,895,341 1,896,549
General revenues:
Property taxes 2,846,766 2,722,906 - - 2,846,766 2,722,906
Special parcel taxes 1,348,657 1,309,373 - - 1,348,657 1,309,373
Sales and use taxes 563,908 510,029 - - 563,908 510,029
Business license taxes 162,881 90,872 - - 162,881 90,872
Franchise fees 587,740 567,350 - - 587,740 567,350
Payments in lieu of taxes 174,443 171,029 - - 174,443 171,029
Investment income (281,502) 508,256 379) (281,502) 507,877
Miscellaneous 54,512 38,972 - - 54,512 38,972
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 6,958 1,741 - - 6,958 1,741
Total general revenues 5,464,363 5,920,528 (379) 5,464,363 5,920,149
Total revenues 9,342,857 7,818,519 16,847 (1,821) 9,359,704 7,816,698
Expenses:
General government 2,629,048 1,796,454 - - 2,629,048 1,796,454
Public works 2,509,096 2,909,710 - - 2,509,096 2,909,710
Public safety 2,736,817 2,980,000 - - 2,736,817 2,980,000
Community and economic
development 356,450 357,133 - - 356,450 357,133
Parks and recreation services 729,729 592,433 - - 729,729 592,433
Endeavor Hall - - 60,694 73117 60,694 73,117
Total expenses 8,961,140 8,635,730 60,694 73,117 9,021,834 8,708,847
Change in Net Position 381,717 (817,211) (43,847) (74,938) 337,870 (892,149)
Net Position - Beginning, restated 44,498,018 45,260,317 923,986 998,924 45,422,004 46,259,241
Net Position - ending $ 44879735 $ 44443106 $ 880139 $ 923986 $ 45,759,874 $ 45367092
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS, Continued
Analysis of Governmental Activities

The increase in net position of the governmental activities over the prior year was primarily attributable
to a increase in both operating and capital grants and contributions. Total expenses were $8,961,140 in
the current year compared to $8,635,730 in the prior year. The following chart depicts the relative size of
expenses by function for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2022 and 2021:

Government Activities
Expenses by Function
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Total program revenues from governmental activities were $3,878,494 in the current year compared to
$1,897,991 in the prior year. Program revenues are derived directly from the program itself or from
parties outside the reporting government's taxpayers or citizenry. They reduce the net cost of the function
to be financed from government's general revenues. Of the governmental program revenues, 25.8% were
derived from charges for services, which includes park use fees, rental fees, licenses and permits,
planning services fees, engineering plan check fees, police service fees, and other revenues. The
remaining 74.2% of the governmental program revenues came from operating and capital grants and
contributions. General revenues are all other revenues not categorized as program revenues such as
property taxes, special parcel taxes, sales and use taxes, motor vehicle fees, investment earnings,
franchise fees, use of money and property, service charges, and miscellaneous revenues.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS, Continued
Analysis of Governmental Activities, Continued

Total general revenues from governmental activities decreased by $456,165 (7.7%) over the prior year.
The following pie charts depict the relative size of governmental activities program and general revenues
by source for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2022 and 2021:
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Analysis of Business-Type Activities

Total business-type expenses decreased 20.4% from $73,117 in the prior year to $60,694 in the current
year. This decrease is largely attributable to the decrease in general and administrative costs of the
Endeavor Hall rental facility. Total services revenue increased significantly from $-1,442 in the prior year
to $16,847 in the current year due to the increase in rental activity. Net position of business-type activities
declined $43,847 to a total of $880,139 at June 30, 2022 due to charges for services being insufficient to
cover the annual depreciation expense and general operating expenses of underlying Endeavor Hall
rental facility assets.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS
Analysis of Governmental Funds

The focus of the City of Clayton's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Clayton's
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $17,172,907. Of this amount, $5,744,867 (33.5%) is unassigned; $173,471(1.0%) is in non-
spendable form; $3,330,153 (19.4%) is assigned for specific purposes; $6,719,595 (39.1%) is restricted by
law, regulation, or other outside contractual agreements; and $1,204,821 (7.0%) is committed for specific
expenditures in the future.

General Fund

The City’s General Fund reported an increase in fund balance of $249,464 (4.0%) in the current fiscal year.
This modest increase is mostly attributable to increase in property taxes, special parcel taxes and
assessments, and a corresponding decrease in investment earnings (primarily due to market rate
adjustments). Total fund balance of the General Fund is $6,413,357 as of June 30, 2022, of which $5,744,867
(89.6%) is reported as unassigned and available for appropriation. This unassigned fund balance is .92
times the size of the General Fund’s adopted operating budget for the upcoming fiscal year ending June
30, 2022.

Below is a summary of the General Fund expenditures by department.

Pandemic
Rainy Recovery
General Fund Day Fund Reserve Total
General government $ 1,447,700 $ 26,000 $ 1,096,717 $ 2,570,417
Public safety 2,684,319 - - 2,684,319
Public works 333,423 - - 333,423
Community and
economic development 299,175 - - 299,175
Parks and recreation
services 336,592 - - 336,592
Capital outlay ' 22,168 - - 22,168
Total expenditures $ 5123377 $ 26,000 $ 1,096,717 $ 6,246,094

Landscape Maintenance District

Community Facilities District No. 2007-1, referred to as the Landscape Maintenance District special
revenue fund, reported a decrease in fund balance of $447,353 (41.2%) in the current fiscal year. This
decrease in fund balance is largely attributable to increases in operating costs such as water service and
weed abatement, as well as a increase in project costs/capital outlay costs. Total fund balance of the
Landscape Maintenance District is $638,533 as of June 30, 2022, of which $32,509 is reported as assigned
or restricted for the following year’s operating budget, and the remaining fund balance is assigned.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS, Continued
Analysis of Governmental Funds, Continued

Successor Housing Agency

The Successor Housing Agency special revenue fund reported a increase in fund balance of $187,452
(3.4%) in the current fiscal year. This increase in fund balance resulted primarily from unspent program
revenue on housing loan repayments as well as unrealized gains on the inventory of affordable income
housing. Total fund balance of the Successor Housing Agency is $5,617,695 as of June 30, 2022, which is
classified entirely as restricted.

Capital Improvement Program

The Capital Improvement Program capital projects fund reported an increase in fund balance of $681,698
(35.4%) in the current fiscal year. This increase in fund balance primarily arose from timing differences
between project execution and funding. Total fund balance of the Capital Improvement Program fund is
$2,606,444 and is reported entirely as assigned for capital projects as of June 30, 2022.

Analysis of Proprietary Funds

The City of Clayton's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail. The net position of the City’s only major enterprise fund,
Endeavor Hall, at the end of the year was $880,139, and total net position for the internal service funds
amounted to $1,000,736.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

General Fund actual revenues and transfers fall short of total revenues and transfers of the final and
adopted budget by $39,744. The variance is due to a combination of factors including an increase in taxes
and assessment and a decrease in the investment reported at year-end based on the market rate. The
unrealized investment loss was reported as a direct result of the City’s investment portfolio being largely
made up of fixed instrument securities during a time of declining interest rates. As noted in recent
quarterly investment portfolio reports presented to the City Council, the City’s investment policy is
designed to reduce volatility and generate consistent returns in the long run-in order to protect public
funds. Actual property tax revenues exceeded somewhat conservative adopted budgetary growth
projections by $186,163 (6.9%), which was largely offset by lower-than-expected revenue from permits,
licenses and fees and sales tax receipts. '
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS, Continued

Actual General Fund expenditures of $6,246,094 were more than the final adjusted budget by $1,447,307
for the year ended June 30, 2022. The negative variance is a result of actual expenditures being more than
budgeted in General government due to investments in the capital expenditures for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2022 amounted to $30,125408 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land, building, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, corporate yard
building, and roads. Total depreciation expense on governmental assets totaled $1,048,171, versus
$1,080,713 in the prior year. The slight decrease in depreciation is attributable to the completion of
significant capital projects during the prior and current fiscal years and capital assets reaching their
estimated useful lives. Additional information on the City of Clayton's capital assets can be found in
Note 6 of this report.

Debt Administration

The remaining debt of the former Clayton Redevelopment Agency (RDA) of $5,835,000 was transferred
to the Successor Agency on February 1, 2012 (fiscal year ending June 30, 2012). The City has no
outstanding general obligation debt. The Successor Agency has maintained its "AAA" credit rating (S&P)
on outstanding Tax Allocation Bonds. Additional information on the Successor Agency's long-term debt
can be found in Note 13 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

As the City of Clayton is largely a residential community the annual General Fund operating budget
relies heavily on property taxes to finance annual operating appropriations rather than other sources of
revenue larger and more commercially and industrial developed municipalities have access to (i. e. sales
and transient occupancy taxes). The City strives to meet the ever evolving needs of local residents and
businesses within the constraints of limited and sometimes restrictive revenue sources.

There was an increase in adopted General Fund operating appropriations when compared to the actuals
reported as of June 30, 2022, for the upcoming fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 of $641,365 (10.2%). The
increase in appropriations is attributable primarily to labor wage and benefit costs of various City
departments and capital improvement costs included as part of the general government. The annual
June 2021 to June 2022 consumer price index inflationary factor is 6.8% as published by the U. S. Bureau
of Labor and Statistics for the San Francisco-Oakland-Hayward region. In addition, there are projected
decreases in the annual CalPERS unfunded accrued liabilities and normal costs, primarily due to Classic
Tier employees retiring and new employees being hired in the PEPRA tier. The adopted budget for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 projects total General Fund revenues of $6,887,459 an increase of
approximately
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City of Clayton
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the year ended June 30, 2022

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET, Continued

$34,920 over the prior year actual. The projected revenue growth reflects continued growth in property
tax and sales and use taxes supported by actual results reported in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Clayton's finances for all
those with an interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in

this report, or requests for additional financial information, should be addressed to the Office of the
Finance Manager, 6000 Heritage Trail, Clayton, California 94517.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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- City of Clayton
Government-Wide
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2022
Governmental =~ Business-Type
ASSETS Activities Activites Total
Current Assets:
Cash and investments $ 13,441,679 $ - $ 13,441,679
Accounts receivable (net of allowances) 1,133,315 - 1,133,315
Interest receivable 25,257 - 25,257
Internal balances 120,893 (120,893) -
Prepaid expenses 52,578 - 52,578
Total Current Assets 14,773,722 (120,893) 14,652,829
Noncurrent Assets:
Investment in affordable housing 3,170,453 - 3,170,453
Notes receivable 3,311,550 - 3,311,550
Nondepreciable assets 3,133,754 167,738 3,301,492
Depreciable assets, net 25,982,451 841,465 26,823,916
Total Noncurrent Assets 35,598,208 1,009,203 36,607,411
Total Assets 50,371,930 888,310 51,260,240
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pension 1,285,641 - 1,285,641
Deferred outflows related to OPEB - - -
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,285,641 - 1,285,641
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilites:
Accounts payable 149,907 2,671 152,578
Deposits payable - 5,500 5,500
Accrued payroll 37 - 37
Unearned revenue 332,166 - 332,166
Compensated absences payable 83,645 - 83,645
Other liabilities 74,358 - 74,358
Total Current Liabilities 640,113 8,171 648,284
Noncurrent Liabilites:
Compensated absences payable 83,645 - 83,645
Net OPEB liability 578,315 - 578,315
Net pension liability 2,759,739 - 2,759,739
Lease payable 244,640 - 244,640
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,666,339 - 3,666,339
Total Liabilities 4,306,452 8,171 4,314,623
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pension 2,471,384 - 2,471,384
Deferred inflows related to OPEB - - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,471,384 - 2,471,384
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 29,116,205 1,009,203 30,125,408
Restricted for special projects and programs 9,890,048 - 9,890,048
Unrestricted 5,873,482 (129,064) 5,744,418
Total Net Position $ 44,879,735 3 880,139  $ 45,759,874

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental Funds are used to account for activities primarily supported by taxes, grants, and similar
revenue sources. All governmental funds can be classified into one of five fund types: the General Fund,
special revenue funds, debt service funds, capital projects funds, and permanent funds.

General Fund:

The General Fund is the main operating fund of the City and is presented as a major fund. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds:

Special revenue funds account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted
or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. The
following are reported as major special revenue funds:

Landscape Maintenance District - Community Facilities District (CFD) No. 2007-1, referred to as the
Landscape Maintenance District special revenue fund, accounts for real property voter-approved
special parcel taxes collected to maintain arterial landscaping and open space within the City (CFD
No. 2007-1 sunsets in 2027).

Successor Housing Agency - Accounts for the activities related to the assets assumed by the City of
Clayton as the Housing Successor to the housing activities of the former Redevelopment Agency of
the City of Clayton.

American Rescue Plan Act - Accounts for the activities related to the grant funding received from
the American Rescue Plan Act.

Capital Projects Funds:

Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. The following is
the City’s sole major capital projects fund:

Capital Improvement Program - Accounts for the projects identified in the capital improvement
program funded by various federal and state grants as well as through transfers from the General
Fund.

Non-major Governmental Funds:

All non-major governmental funds of the City are aggregated and presented on the face of the basic
financial statements in one column.
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City of Clayton
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet

June 30, 2022
Special Revenue
Landscape
Maintenance Successor
General Fund District Housing Agency
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 5,985,880 $ 693,391 $ 1,857,892
Accounts receivable 646,294 - -
Interest receivable 25,257 - -
Investment in affordable housing - - 3,170,453
Notes receivable - - 3,311,550
Prepaid items 52,578 - =
Due from other funds 120,893 - -
Advance to other funds - - -
Total Assets $ 6,830,902 $ 693,391 $ 8,339,895
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,826 $ 54,858 $ -
Other payables 71,658 - -
Accrued payroll 37 - -
Compensated absences 83,645 - -
Unearned revenue - - .
Total Liabilities 157,166 54,858 -
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred revenue 260,379 - 2,722,200
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 260,379 - 2,722,200
Fund Balance:
Non-spendable 173,471 - -
Restricted - 32,509 5,617,695
Committed 495,019 - -
Assigned - 606,024 -
Unassigned 5,744,867 - -
Total Fund Balance 6,413,357 638,533 5,617,695
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Fund Balances $ 6,830,902 $ 693,391 $ 8,339,895

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton
Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2022
Capital Project
Capital Other
American Improvement Governmental

Rescue Plan Act Program Funds Total
$ - $ 2,674,360 $ 1,769,715 $ 12,981,238
- - 487,021 1,133,315
- - - 25,257
- - - 3,170,453
- - - 3,311,550
- - - 52,578
- - - 120,893
$ - $ 2,674,360 $ 2,256,736 $ 20,795,284
$ - $ 67,916 $ 24,992 $ 149,592
- - 2,700 74,358
- - - 37
- - - 83,645
- - 332,166 332,166
- 67,916 359,858 639,798
- - - 2,982,579
- - - 2,982,579
- - - 173,471
- - 1,069,391 6,719,595
- - 709,802 1,204,821
- 2,606,444 117,685 3,330,153
- - - 5,744,867
- 2,606,444 1,896,878 17,172,907
$ - $ 2,674,360 $ 2,256,736 $ 20,795,284

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and therefore are
not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

Non-depreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets (net of internal service fund assets of $493,547)

ACCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Unavailable revenue which are deferred inflows of resources in the Governmental Funds because
they are not available currently, but are taken into revenue in the statement of activities.

LONG-TERM ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.
Net OPEB liability not reported on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
Compensated absences payable
Net pension liability not reported on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
Lease liability not reported on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS
Deferred inflows/ (outflows) of resources for not reported on the Governmental Funds Balance
Sheet
Deferred outflows of resources for net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources for net pension liability
Deferred outflows of resources for net OPEB liability
Deferred inflows of resources for net OPEB liability

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND NET POSITION

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in the
governmental activities in the Government-wide Statement of Net Position.

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton
Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the year ended June 30, 2022

Special Revenue
Landscape Successor
Maintenance Housing
General Fund District Agency
REVENUES
Property taxes 2,846,766 $ - % -
Program income - - 111,400
Special parcel taxes and assessments - 1,204,882 -
Sales and use taxes 563,908 - -
Business licenses 162,881 - -
Permits, licenses and fees 114,026 - -
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 151,409 - -
Intergovernmental 135,233 - -
Motor vehicle in-lieu fees - - -
Other in-lieu fees 174,443 - -
Franchise fees 587,740 - -
Service charges 305,645 - -
Use of money and property (185,018) (24,383) 17,961
Other revenue 40,844 - -
Total Revenues 4,897,877 1,180,499 129,361
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 2,570,417 - -
Public safety 2,684,319 - -
Public works 333,423 1,424,676 -
Community and economic development 299,175 - -
Parks and recreation services 336,592 - -
Capital outlay 22,168 161,367 -
Total Expenditures 6,246,094 1,586,043 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (1,348,217) (405,544) 129,361
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Unrealized gains (losses) - - 58,091
Transfers in 1,597,681 - -
Transfers out - (41,809) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,597,681 (41,809) 58,091
Net Change in Fund Balances 249,464 (447,353) 187,452
FUND BALANCES
Beginning of year, restated 6,163,893 1,085,886 5,430,243
End of fiscal year 6413357 % 638533 $ 5,617,695

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements



City of Clayton
Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Capital Project
Capital Other
American Improvement Governmental
Rescue Plan Act Program Funds Total

$ - 8 - 8 - % 2,846,766
- - - 111,400

- - 442,230 1,647,112

- - - 563,908

- - - 162,881

- - 140,326 254,352

- - - 151,409

1,467,024 - 1,170,041 2,772,298

- - - 174,443

- - - 587,740

- - - 305,645

- (80,986) (52,490) (324,916)

- - 648 41,492

1,467,024 (80,986) 1,700,755 9,294,530

- - 126,650 2,697,067

- - 130,541 2,814,860

- - 383,356 2,141,455

- - - 299,175

- - 140,808 477,400

- 869,925 48,889 1,102,349

- 869,925 830,244 9,532,306
1,467,024 (950,911) 870,511 (237,776)

- - - 58,091

- 1,632,609 21,214 3,251,504
(1,467,024) - (1,742,671) (3,251,504)
(1,467,024) 1,632,609 (1,721,457) 58,091
- 681,698 (850,946) (179,685)

- 1,924,746 2,747,824 17,352,592

$ - 8 2606444 $ 1,896,878 $ 17,172,907

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances to the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ (179,685)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

ACCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT ITEMS

The amounts below included in the Statement of Activities do not provide (or require) the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as revenue or expenditures in the
Governmental Funds (net change).

Net change in post-employment benefits (OPEB) liability and deferred inflows (outflows) (74,942)
Long-term compensated absences payable (745)
Net change in pension liability and deferred inflows (outflows). 730,720

Unavailable revenues (113,947)
Net change in lease liability (244,640)

CAPITAL ASSET TRANSACTIONS

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in the Statement of Activities
the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense.

Capital asset acquisition, excluding internal service fund asset acquisitions. 1,217,507
Depreciation expense is deducted from the fund balance (Net of internal service fund depreciation
of $100,425). (947,745)

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND ACTIVITY

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as
insurance and fleet management, to individual funds. The net gain or loss of the internal service

funds is reported with governmental activities. (4,806)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities on Statement of Activities $ 381,717

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
45



PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary funds account for City operations financed and operated in a manner similar to a private
business enterprise. The intent of the City is that the cost of providing goods and services be financed
primarily through user charges. The City’s proprietary funds can be classified into two fund types:
enterprise and internal service funds.

Enterprise Funds:

Enterprise funds are used to report any activity for which a fee is charged to external users for goods or
services. The following is the City’s sole major enterprise fund:

Endeavor Hall - Accounts for all rental activities related to operation of the underlying rental facility
asset. The primary use of the rental facility has been for wedding receptions and other formal special
events.

Internal Service Funds:

The City’s internal service funds account for activities that provide goods or services to other City funds,

departments, or agencies on a cost reimbursement basis. All internal service funds of the City are
aggregated and presented on the face of the proprietary fund financial statements in one column.
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City of Clayton
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

Business-type Governmental
Activities - Activities -
Endeavor Hall Internal Service

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ - $ 460,441
Noncurrent assets
Land 167,738 -
Depreciable assets, net 841,465 540,610
Total Assets 1,009,203 1,001,051
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,671 315
Other payables - -
Deposits payable 5,500 -
Due to other funds 120,893 -
Total Liabilities 129,064 315
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,009,203 540,610
Unrestricted (129,064) 460,126
Total Net Position $ 880,139 $ 1,000,736

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the year ended June 30, 2022
Governmental
Business-type Activities -
Activities - Internal Service
Endeavor Hall Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for current services $ 16,847  $ 111,900
Total Operating Revenues 16,847 111,900
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel 4,833 -
General and administrative 26,989 8,564
Depreciation and amortization 28,872 100,425
Total Operating Expenses 60,694 108,989
Operating Income (Loss) (43,847) 2,911
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - 6,958
Investment income - (14,675)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) - (7,717)
Net (loss) Before Contributions and
Operating Transfers (43,847) (4,806)
Capital contributions - -
Transfers in / (out) - -
Change in Net Position (43,847) (4,806)
NET POSITION:
Beginning of fiscal year 923,986 1,005,542
End of fiscal year $ 880,139 % 1,000,736

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton
Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Claims paid
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

Transfers in / (out)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing

activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition of fixed assets
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related

financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received on investments
Net Cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Beginning of fiscal year
End of fiscal year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in current assets and liabilities:
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable
Increase (decrease) in interfund payables
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Governmental
Business-type Activities -
Activities - Internal Service
Endeavor Hall Funds
$ 20,847 % 111,900
(24,734) (4,001)
(4,833) -
oy (4/428)
(8,720) 103,471
8,720 -
8,720 -
- (153,184)
- 6,958
- (146,226)
- (14,675)
- (14,675)
- (57,430)
- 517,871
$ - $ 460,441
$ (43,847) $ 2,911
28,872 100,425
2,255 135
4,000 -
$ 8,720) $ 103,471

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements



FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore cannot be used
to support the government’s own programs. The City’s fiduciary funds can be classified into two fund
types: agency and private purpose trust funds.

Agency Funds:

Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurements of results
of operations. They are used to account for assets held in an agency capacity for others and therefore
cannot be used to support the City's program. Agency funds are accounted for using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

Private Purpose Trust Funds
Private purpose trust funds account for resources held by the City as trustee for third party beneficiaries,
and are used to report both the Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net Position for the

Successor Agency for the former Redevelopment Agency. Private Purpose Trust Funds are accounted
for under the full accrual basis of accounting.
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City of Clayton
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2022

Private Purpose

Trust Fund
Redevelopment
Successor
Agency Agency Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 526,807 $ 1,632,920
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 1 376,103
Accounts receivable - 10,188
Other assets - 967
Assessments receivable - 655,931
Due from bondholders - 182,883
Notes receivable 52,607 -
Investment in bonds - 470,000
Total Assets 579,415 3,328,992
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable - 16,378
Other liabilities - 1,455,651
Deposits payable - 774,539
Accrued interest payable 10,973 -
Advance from Successor Housing Agency - -
Notes payable - 52,606
Bonds payable 1,145,000 1,029,818
Total Liabilities 1,155,973 $ 3,328,992
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred notes receivables -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources -
NET POSITION
Held in trust for others (576,558)
Total Net Position $ (576,558)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Private Purpose

Trust Fund
Redevelopment
Successor
Agency
ADDITIONS
Tax increment revenue $ 618,554
Program revenue 2,121
Investment gain (loss) (15,186)
Total Additions 605,489
DEDUCTIONS
Interest expense 24,141
Administrative costs 252,179
Other expenses -
Total Deductions 276,320
Changes in Net Position 329,169
NET POSITION
Beginning of Year (905,727)
End of Year $ (576,558)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton-
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Clayton, California (City) have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP) as applied to governmental agencies. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the
City's accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

The City of Clayton (City) is primarily a residential community nestled in the foothills of Mount Diablo
in Contra Costa County, California. The City was incorporated on March 3, 1964 under the laws of the
State of California, and encompasses approximately four square miles with a population of 11,700. The
City operates under the Council-Manager form of government, with five elected Council members
served by a full-time City Manager totaling a staff of twenty-six and a fifth (26.2) full-time equivalent
employees providing the following services: public works, parks and recreation services, community
and economic development, public safety, and general government. The City’s public safety program is
served by an in-house police force of eleven (11) full-time sworn police officers supported by two (2) full-
time administrative personnel.

The basic financial statements include the financial activities of the City, Successor Agency to the Clayton
Redevelopment Agency (Successor Agency) and the Clayton Financing Authority (Authority).

The City is the primary government unit. Component units are those entities which are financially
accountable to the primary government, either because the City appoints a voting majority of the
component unit's board, or because the component unit will provide a financial benefit or impose a
financial burden on the City. The Clayton Redevelopment Agency (“RDA”), which was dissolved as of
February 1, 2012 was accounted for as a "blended" component unit of the City. Despite being legally
separate, this entity was so intertwined with the City that it is, in substance, part of the City's operations.
Accordingly, the balances and transactions of this component unit were reported within the funds of the
City. Upon the dissolution of the RDA, the RDA ceased to be reported as a blended component unit and
was replaced by the Successor Agency, which is reported as a private purpose trust fund in the fiduciary
fund section of the financial statements.

The Authority is a joint exercise of powers authority duly organized and existing under and pursuant to
that certain Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, by and between the City and the former RDA of the
City of Clayton with the City Council serving as the Board of Directors. It was created by the City of
Clayton City Council in 1990 with the primary purpose of issuing bonded obligations to finance capital
projects within the community for which repayment is secured by pledges of revenue from legally
separate and distinct districts. The activities of the Authority are reported in the fiduciary fund financial
statement section as the Authority’s debt is secured entirely by third parties that are not part of the
primary government of the City and the City has no obligation for such debt. Separate financial
statements of the Authority are available at the City’s website at www. ci. clayton. ca. gov.
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City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses as
appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon
the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of
Activities. These statements present summaries of governmental and business type activities for the City,
the primary government. Fiduciary activities of the City are not included in these statements.

These financial statements are presented on an "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City's assets and liabilities, including capital assets and related
infrastructure assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net
Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net position.

Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned
while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the City in three categories:

e Charges for services
e Operating grants and contributions
e Capital grants and contributions

Certain eliminations have been made in regards to inter-fund activities, payables and receivables. All
internal balances in the statement of net position have been eliminated in the statement of activities;
internal service fund transactions have been eliminated. However, those transactions between
governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated. The following inter-fund activities
have been eliminated:

o Advances to/from other funds

e Due to/from other funds
o Transfers in/out
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City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued

Governmental fund financial statements include a balance sheet and a statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds
aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in fund
balances as presented in these statements to the net position as presented in the government-wide
financial statements. The City has presented all major funds that met the applicable criteria.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources" measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current
liabilities are included on the Balance Sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balances present increases (revenue and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and
other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to finance
expenditures of the current period.

Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except those revenues subject to accrual (generally sixty
[60] days after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which have been
treated as susceptible to accrual by the City, are property tax, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues, and
other taxes. Revenues from other governmental agencies (excluding property taxes) are deemed to be
available if received within one hundred eighty (180) days after fiscal year end. Expenditures are
recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred.

Deferred revenues arise when potential revenues do not meet both the "measurable" and "available"
criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when the government receives
resources before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to incurring
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when
the government has a legal claim to the resources, the deferred revenue is removed from the balance
sheet and revenue is recognized.

The reconciliation of the fund financial statements to the government-wide financial statements is
provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach of GASB Statement No. 34. The
City has the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - This fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund.
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City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued

Landscape Maintenance District -~ This special revenue fund accounts for the Community Facility
District No. 2007-1 restricted special parcel tax approved over two-thirds the local electorate in the
June 2016 election through the passing of “Measure H. ” This special parcel tax is restricted to fund
the operation, maintenance, and improvement of specific city-wide public landscaped areas.

Successor Housing Agency - This special revenue fund accounts for the City’s low and moderate
housing program, which was assumed by the by City Council action upon dissolution of the former
redevelopment agency. Program revenue of this fund is primarily generated through the repayment
on low-moderate income housing loans.

Capital Improvement Program - This capital projects fund accounts for the projects identified in the
capital improvement program funded by various federal and state grants as well as through
transfers from the General Fund.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary fund financial statements include a statement of net position, a statement of revenues,
expenses and change in fund net position, and a statement of cash flows for all proprietary funds. Internal
service funds are presented in these statements. However, internal service balances and activities have
been combined with the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included
on the statement of net position. The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position
present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are
recognized in the period in which liability is incurred. Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are
those revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are
reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the
primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as nonoperating expenses.

The City has the following major enterprise fund:

Endeavor Hall - This fund accounts for all activities related to use of the facility. The primary use has
been for wedding receptions.
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City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued
The City has the following internal service funds:

Capital Equipment Replacement Fund - This fund accounts for the operation, maintenance, and
replacement of the City vehicles and equipment.

Self-Insurance Fund - This fund accounts for the administration of the City's self-insurance programs,
payment of Employee Assistance Programs, and self-insured liability claim deductibles.

Pension Rate Stabilization Fund - This fund stabilizes major fluctuations in annual employer pension
costs driven by market factors and actuarial changes.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

The agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of
results of operations, therefore only a statement of fiduciary net position is presented. Agency funds are
accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Reclassifications were recorded to prior year amounts reported for various assets and liabilities for
agency funds in order to be consistent with the current year’s presentation.

Private purpose trust funds account for resources held by the City as trustee for third party beneficiaries,
and are used to report both the fiduciary net position and changes in fiduciary net position of the
Successor Agency to the former Redevelopment Agency. Private purpose trust funds are accounted for
under the full accrual basis of accounting.

Use of Restricted and Unrestricted Net Position

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are
available, the City's policy is to apply restricted net position first.

Cash Equivalents
For purposes of reporting cash flows for the City’s proprietary funds, pooled cash and investments held

by the City are considered cash equivalents as the proprietary fund can access pooled cash and
investments in a manner similar to a demand deposit.
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City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Cash and Investments

The City pools cash and investments from all funds for the purpose of increasing income. through
investment activities. Interest income on investments is allocated to the funds on the basis of average
month-end cash and investment balances. Investments are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on
quoted market price if applicable. Otherwise the fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 - Values are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs, other than quoted prices, included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 3 - Certain inputs are unobservable inputs (supported by little or no market activity, such as
the City’s best estimate of what hypothetical market participants would use to determine a
transaction price for the asset or liability at the reporting date).

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) determines fair value on its investment portfolio based on market
quotations for these securities where market quotations are readily available, and on amortized cost or
best estimate for those securities where market value is not readily available.

The City’s investment policy (Policy) states that the primary investment objective is safety with
investments being legally permitted and sufficiently liquid to meet forecasted needs. Maximization of
interest earnings is a secondary objective. Further, the Policy states that the City Treasurer has the
ultimate responsibility to protect, preserve and maintain cash and investments. The Policy also
established internal controls and reporting requirements. The Policy stipulates "Permitted Investments
and Limitation on Investments. " The City invests in the California LAIF, which is part of the Pooled
Money Investment Account operated by the California State Treasurer. LAIF funds are invested in high
quality money market securities and are managed to insure the safety of the portfolio. A portion of LAIF's
investments are in structured notes and asset-backed securities.

Investments held with CAMP are recorded at amortized cost in accordance with GASB Statement No.
79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants. The City participates in the California Asset
Management Program (CAMP) which is a voluntary investment alternative authorized by Section
53601(p) of the California Government Code. CAMP is managed by a seven-member Board of Trustees
comprised of California public agency finance officials. Investments are transacted by an investment
advisor and all securities are held by a third-party custodian. All securities in CAMP are purchased under
the authority of Section 53601, subdivisions (a) to (n) of the California Government Code.
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City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Cash and Investments, Continued

Certain disclosure requirements, if applicable, for deposits and investment risks are specified in the
following areas:

e Interest Rate Risk
o Credit Risk
o Overall
o Custodial Credit Risk
o Concentrations of Credit Risk

In addition, other disclosures are specified including use of certain methods to present deposits and
investments, highly sensitive investments, credit quality at year-end and other disclosures.

Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid items in governmental funds are
equally offset by amounts included nonspendable fund balance which indicates that they do not
constitute available spendable resources even though they are a component of net position. The cost of
prepaid items is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

Investment in Affordable Housing

This City Successor Housing Agency special revenue fund has purchased and re-sold several housing
properties located in Stranahan Circle to low and moderate income households. The City carries the
difference between the cost and sale on these properties as an investment in affordable housing until the
property is either bought back by the City or sold on the open market. The City participates in the profits
on any sales of these properties to an outside party in the same proportion as what the low and moderate
income purchaser acquired the property from the City at the below market subsidized value. The City
reports the investment in affordable housing at its proportionate equity share of the fair market value of
the underlying properties at year-end. Stranahan Circle properties are considered “level 2” investments.
The City values their interest in the properties annually using third party published market inputs. At
June 30, 2022 the fair value was $3,170,453, which includes an increase of $131,382 for the year then ended.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are valued at cost or, during the initial implementation, estimated historical cost if actual
historical cost was not available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value
on the date donated. Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets
received in a service concession arrangement are reported at acquisition value rather than fair value. City
policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting infrastructure at $100,000; all other capital assets
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Capital Assets, Continued

are set at $5,000. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 20 - 75 years
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 5 - 10 years
Infrastructure 20 - 75 years

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34 which
requires the inclusion of infrastructure capital assets in local governments' basic financial statements. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City has included all infrastructure into the current basic
financial statements. The City defines infrastructure as the basic physical assets that allow the City to
function. The assets include streets, park lands, and buildings. Each major infrastructure system can be
divided into subsystems. For example, the street system can be subdivided into pavement, curb and
gutters, sidewalks, medians, streetlights, landscaping and land. These subsystems were not delineated
in the basic financial statements. The appropriate operating department maintains information regarding
the subsystems. Interest accrued during capital assets construction, if any, is capitalized for the business-
type and proprietary funds as part of the asset cost. For all infrastructure systems, the City elected to use
the Basic Approach as defined by GASB Statement No. 34 for infrastructure reporting. The City
commissioned an appraisal of City owned infrastructure and property as of June 30, 2003. This appraisal
determined the original cost, which is defined as the actual cost to acquire new property in accordance
with market prices at the time of first construction/acquisition.

Original costs were developed in one of three ways: (1) historical records; (2) standard unit costs
appropriate for the construction/acquisition date; or (3) present cost indexed by a reciprocal factor of the
price increase from the construction/acquisition date to the current date. The accumulated depreciation,
defined as the total depreciation from the date of construction/acquisition to the current date on a
straight line, unrecovered cost method was computed using industry accepted life expectancies for each
infrastructure subsystem. The book value was then computed by deducting the accumulated
depreciation from the original cost.

Long-Term Liabilities
In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other financial obligations are reported
as liabilities in the appropriate activities columns. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance

costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable premium or discount. Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Long-Term Liabilities, Continued

The governmental fund financial statements do not present long-term debt, which are shown in the
reconciliation of the governmental funds balance sheet to the government-wide statement of net position.
Governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the
current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financial sources. Premiums received
on debt issuance are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuance reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

Compensated Absences

In the government-wide financial statements compensated absences are recorded as incurred and related
expenses and liabilities are reported by activity. The long-term portion of governmental activities is
liquidated primarily by the General Fund. In the governmental funds compensated absences are recorded
as expenditures in the years paid, as it is the City's policy to liquidate any unpaid compensated absences
at June 30 from future resources, rather than currently available financial resources. Compensated
absences include vacation as well as compensated leave hours earned in-lieu of overtime. It is the policy
of the City to pay up to and capped at a maximum of eighteen (18) times an employee’s capped monthly
vacation accrual upon retirement or termination.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s California
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the
Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. CalPERS’
audited financial statements are publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website
under Forms and Publications.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
City’s plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments, if any, are reported at fair value.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), Continued

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability and
asset information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation date June 30, 2022
Measurement Date June 30, 2022
Measurement Period July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022

Leases

The City is a lessee for noncancelable equipment leases. The City recognizes a lease liability and an
intangible right-to-use asset (lease asset) in its financial statements. At the commencement of a lease, the
City initially measures the lease liability at the present value of payments expected to be made during
the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments
made. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease liability. Subsequently, the
lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life.

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the City determines (1) the discount rate it
uses to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) the lease term, and (3) lease
payments.

Net Position/ Fund Balances

Government-Wide Financial Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, net position is classified in the following categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that attributed to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of the assets.

Restricted Net Position - This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws
or regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted Net Position - This amount is all net position that do not meet the definition of "net
investment in capital assets" or "restricted net position. " Nonspendable governmental funds
balances are categorized as unrestricted net position on the government-wide financial statements.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Net Position/ Fund Balances, Continued

Fund Balance Reporting

Equity of governmental funds are reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily
on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which
amounts in those funds can be spent. The City Council, as the highest level of decision-making authority,
commits and assigns fund balances through the passing of resolutions and ordinances, requiring an
equal action for modification or rescinding thereof. It is the policy of the City to spend funds in order
from restricted to unassigned, as listed below.

Fund balances for the governmental funds are made up of the following:

*  Non-spendable - Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form, or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

e Restricted - Includes amounts that should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on
the use of resources are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws
and regulations of other governments; or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

o Committed - Includes amounts that cannot be used for any other purpose unless the government
removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it employed to previously
commit those amounts. '

e Assigned - Includes amounts constrained by the government’s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed, except for stabilization arrangements.

o Unassigned - The residual funds that have not been assigned to other funds, are not non-
spendable, restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes. The General Fund is the only
fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance.

The City Council has formally adopted a policy requiring a minimum General Fund reserve contingency
of $250,000.

Property tax revenues are recognized in the fiscal year for which the tax and assessment is levied. The
County of Contra Costa (County) levies, bills, and collects property taxes and special assessments for the
City. The County remits the entire amount levied and handles all delinquencies, retaining interest and
penalties (under the Teeter Plan). Secured and unsecured property taxes are levied on July 1 based on
January 1 assessed valuation and are payable in two installments, becoming delinquent on December
10th and April 10th,
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Reclassifications

Certain prior year balances may have been reclassified in order to conform to current year presentation.
These reclassifications had no effect upon reported net position.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates
and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities. In addition, estimates affect the reported amount of expenses. Actual results could
differ from these estimates and assumptions.

Inter-fund Balances/Internal Balances

Outstanding balances between funds are reported as due to and due from other funds. These are
generally repaid within the following fiscal year.

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances. "

New Accounting Pronouncements

The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements have been implemented in the
current financial statements:

e GASB Statement No. 87, “Leases”

The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments.

This Statement will increase the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring reporting
of certain lease liabilities that currently are not reported. It will enhance comparability of financial
statements among governments by requiring lessees and lessors to report leases under a single model.

This Statement also will enhance the decision-usefulness of the information provided to financial
statement users by requiring notes to financial statements related to the timing, significance, and
purpose of a government’s leasing arrangements. The implementation of this pronouncement had a
material impact on the City’s financials.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

New Accounting Pronouncements, Continued

GASB Statement No. 89, “Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period”
The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of information
about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting
for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.

The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting by providing users of financial
statements with more relevant information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a
reporting period. The resulting information also will enhance the comparability of information about
capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period for both governmental activities and
business-type activities. The implementation of this pronouncement did not have a material impact
on the City’s financials.

GASB Statement No. 92 “Omnibus 2020”

The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting
and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have
been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement
addresses a variety of topics and includes specific provisions. The topics include but are not limited
to leases, intra-entity transfers between a primary government and a post-employment benefit plan
component unit, accounting for pensions and OPEB related assets, measurement of liabilities
related to asset retirement obligations, and nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or
liabilities. The implementation of this pronouncement did not have a material impact on the City’s
financials.

GASB Statement No. 93 “Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates”

The objective of this Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting
implications that result from the replacement of an Interbank Offer Rate (IBOR). This Statement
achieves that objective by:

e Providing exceptions for certain hedging derivative instruments to the hedge accounting
termination provisions when an IBOR is replaced as the reference rate of the hedging derivative
instrument’s variable payment

¢ Clarifying the hedge accounting termination provisions when a hedged item is amended to
replace the reference rate

o Clarifying that the uncertainty related to the continued availability of IBORs does not, by itself,
affect the assessment of whether the occurrence of a hedged transaction is probable

e Removing LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the
effectiveness of an interest rate swap

67



City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
New Accounting Pronouncements, Continued

¢ Identifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds Rate as
appropriate benchmark interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an
interest rate swap.

e Clarifying the definition of reference rate, as it is used in Statement 53, as amended.

The removal of London IBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate is effective for reporting
periods ending after December 31, 2021 (fiscal year 2022-23). The City is currently evaluating the
potential impact on the City’s financials.

All other requirements of this Statement are effective for the current fiscal year, and did not have a
material impact on the financial statements.

* GASB Statement No. 97 “Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14
and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32"

The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the
reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not
have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board
typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution
pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit
plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component
units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and
comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457
deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for
benefits provided through those plans. The implementation of this pronouncement did not have a
material impact on the City’s financials.

e GASB Statement No. 98, The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - This Statement establishes
the term annual comprehensive financial report and its acronym ACFR. That new term and acronym
replace instances of comprehensive annual financial report and its acronym in generally accepted
accounting principles for state and local governments. The implementation of this Statement did not
have a material effect on the City’s financial statements.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Future Accounting Pronouncements

The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements are effective in future years
subsequent to the current financial reporting period:

GASB Statement No. 91 “Conduit Debt Obligations”

The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt
obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended
by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note
disclosures.

The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting by eliminating the existing
option for issuers to report conduit debt obligations as their own liabilities, thereby ending significant
diversity in practice. The clarified definition will resolve stakeholders’” uncertainty as to whether a
given financing is, in fact, a conduit debt obligation. Requiring issuers to recognize liabilities
associated with additional commitments extended by issuers and to recognize assets and deferred
inflows of resources related to certain arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations also
will eliminate diversity, thereby improving comparability in reporting by issuers. Revised disclosure
requirements will provide financial statement users with better information regarding the
commitments issuers extend and the likelihood that they will fulfill those commitments. That
information will inform users of the potential impact of such commitments on the financial resources
of issuers and help users assess issuers’ roles in conduit debt obligations.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2021 (fiscal 2023). Earlier application is encouraged. The City is currently evaluating the potential
impact on the City’s financials. _

GASB Statement No. 94 “Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements”

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related
to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). As used in this Statement, a
PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor) contracts with an operator (a
governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the
right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset (the
underlying PPP asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Future Accounting Pronouncements, Continued

The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting by establishing the definitions of
PPPs and APAs and providing uniform guidance on accounting and financial reporting for
transactions that meet those definitions. That uniform guidance will provide more relevant and reliable
information for financial statement users and create greater consistency in practice. This Statement will
enhance the decision usefulness of a government's financial statements by requiring governments to
report assets and liabilities related to PPPs consistently and disclose important information about PPP
transactions. The required disclosures will allow users to understand the scale and important aspects
of a government’s PPPs and evaluate a government’s future obligations and assets resulting from PPP.

PPPs should be recognized and measured using the facts and circumstances that exist at the beginning
of the period of implementation (or if applicable to earlier periods, the beginning of the earliest period
restated). The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022
(fiscal year 2022-23), and all reporting periods thereafter. The City is currently evaluating the potential
impact on the City’s financials.

e GABSB Statement No. 96 “Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements”

This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based
information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This
Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—
an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria
for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4)
requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBIT As are based
on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.

The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting by establishing a definition for
SBITAs and providing uniform guidance for accounting and financial reporting for transactions that
meet that definition. That definition and uniform guidance will result in greater consistency in practice.
Establishing the capitalization criteria for implementation costs also will reduce diversity and improve
comparability in financial reporting by governments. This Statement also will enhance the relevance
and reliability of a government’s financial statements by requiring a government to report a
subscription asset and subscription liability for a SBITA and to disclose essential information about the
arrangement. The disclosures will allow users to understand the scale and important aspects of a
government’s SBITA activities and evaluate a government’s obligations and assets resulting from
SBITAs.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022 (fiscal year

2022-23), and all reporting periods thereafter. The City is currently evaluating the potential impact on
the City’s financials.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Future Accounting Pronouncements, Continued

GASB Statement No. 99, “Omnibus 2022” - The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability
in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by
addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of
certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees. The
practice issues addressed by this Statement are as follows:

Classification and reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement No. 53,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, that do not meet the definition
of either an investment derivative instrument or a hedging derivative instrument

Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended, related to the determination
of the lease term, classification of a lease as a short-term lease, recognition and measurement of
a lease liability and a lease asset, and identification of lease incentives

Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships
and Availability Payment Arrangements, related to (a) the determination of the public-private
and public- public partnership (PPP) term and (b) recognition and measurement of installment
payments and the transfer of the underlying PPP asset

Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements, related to the subscription-based information technology arrangement (SBITA)
term, classification of a SBITA as a short-term SBITA, and recognition and measurement of a
subscription liability

Extension of the period during which the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) is considered
an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an
interest rate swap that hedges the interest rate risk of taxable debt

Accounting for the distribution of benefits as part of the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance
Program (SNAP)

Disclosures related to nonmonetary transactions

Pledges of future revenues when resources are not received by the pledging government
Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements —and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, as amended, related to the focus of
the government-wide financial statements

Terminology updates related to certain provisions of Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of
Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position

Terminology used in Statement 53 to refer to resource flows statements.

The requirements related to extension of the use of LIBOR, accounting for SNAP distributions,
disclosures of nonmonetary transactions, pledges of future revenues by pledging governments,
clarification of certain provisions in Statement 34, as amended, and terminology updates related to
Statement 53 and Statement 63 were effective for the current fiscal year and did not have a material
impact on the City’s financial statements.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Future Accounting Pronouncements, Continued

The requirements related to leases, PPPs, and SBIT As are effective for fiscal years beginning after June
15, 2022 (fiscal 2022-23), and all reporting periods thereafter.

The requirements related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative
instruments within the scope of Statement 53 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023
(fiscal 2023-24), and all reporting periods thereafter.

¢ GASB Statement No. 100, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections-An Amendment of GASB Statement
No. 62”

The primary objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements
for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant,
consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability. This
Statement defines accounting changes as changes in accounting principles, changes in accounting
estimates, and changes to or within the financial reporting entity and describes the transactions or other
events that constitute those changes. This Statement also addresses corrections of errors in previously
issued financial statements.

This Statement prescribes the accounting and financial reporting for (1) each type of accounting change
and (2) error corrections. This Statement requires disclosure in notes to financial statements of
descriptive information about accounting changes and error corrections, such as their nature. In
addition, information about the quantitative effects on beginning balances of each accounting change
and error correction should be disclosed by reporting unit in a tabular format to reconcile beginning
balances as previously reported to beginning balances as restated.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for accounting changes and error corrections made in
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023 (fiscal 2023-24), and all reporting periods thereafter.
Implementation of this Statement may have a material effect on the financial statements of the City.

This space intentionally left blank
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Future Accounting Pronouncements, Continued

GASB Statement No. 101, “Compensated Absences”

This Statement requires that liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has
not been used and (2) leave that has been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash
means. A liability should be recognized for leave that has not been used if (a) the leave is attributable
to services already rendered, (b) the leave accumulates, and (c) the leave is more likely than not to be
used for time off or otherwise paid in cash or settled through noncash means. Leave is attributable to
services already rendered when an employee has performed the services required to earn the leave.
Leave that accumulates is carried forward from the reporting period in which it is earned to a future
reporting period during which it may be used for time off or otherwise paid or settled. In estimating
the leave that is more likely than not to be used or otherwise paid or settled, a government should
consider relevant factors such as employment policies related to compensated absences and historical
information about the use or payment of compensated absences. However, leave that is more likely
than not to be settled through conversion to defined benefit postemployment benefits should not be
included in a liability for compensated absences.

The unified recognition and measurement model in this Statement will result in a liability for
compensated absences that more appropriately reflects when a government incurs an obligation. In
addition, the model can be applied consistently to any type of compensated absence and will eliminate
potential comparability issues between governments that offer different types of leave.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023
(fiscal 2024-25), and all reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged. The City does
not anticipate that the Statement will have a material effect on the financial statements.

This space intentionally left blank
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Classification

The City’s total cash and investments, at fair value, are presented on the accompanying financial
statements in the following allocation:

Government-Wide Statement of Net Position
Governmental Activities
Cash and investments $ 13,441,679
Statements of Fiduciary Net Position
Private Purpose Trust Fund

Cash and investments 526,807
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 1
Agency Funds
Cash and investments 1,632,920
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 376,103
Investments in bonds 470,000
Total $ 16447510
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2022 consist of the following;:
Cash on hand $ 1,000
Deposits with financial institutions 1,129,766
Investments 15,316,744
Total $ 16,447,510

Policy

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City's Investment Policy

The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City of Clayton by the
California Government Code (or the City's investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the City's investment policy, where
more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table
does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions
of debt agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or
the City’s investment policy.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage of Percentage of

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer

Local Agency Investment Fund (State Pool) N/A None $40 million
CAMP N/A None None
Money Market Funds N/A None None
U. S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U. S. Government Agency Issues 5 years 20% None
Bank Deposits N/A None None
Negotiable Time Certificates of Deposit 5 years None None
Medium Term Corporate Bonds 5 years 20% None
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
Policy, Continued

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements,
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's investment policy.
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustees.
The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit
risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage of  Investment in

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A N/A N/A
U. S. Government Agency Issues 5 years 20% None
Federal Housing Administration Debentures N/A N/A N/A
Commercial paper 92 days N/A N/A
Demand or time deposits 366 days N/A N/A

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Usually, the later the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s
investments (including investments held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is
provided by the following table that shows the distribution of investments by maturity:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

12 Months or 13-24 25-36 37-48 49-60
Investment Type Totals Less Months Months Months Months
Pooled Investments:
Local Agency Investment
Fund (LAIF) $ 2,962,837 $ 2,962,837 $ - % - % - % -
California Asset Management
Program (CAMP) 893,134 893,134 - - - -
Certificates of Deposit 8,759,339 3,192,907 1,072,876 1,365,264 1,872,289 1,256,003
Government Securities 1,981,454 - 482,325 137,958 862,826 498,345
Held by Bond Trustees:
U. S. Treasury Note 249,980 249,980 - - - -
Municipal Bonds 470,000 470,000 - - - -
Total Investments $ 15316744 & 7768858 _$ 1,555201 _$ 1503222 $ 2735115 $ 1,754,348

75



City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the
California Government Code, the City's investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as
of fiscal year end for each investment type.

Investment Type AAA AA+ A Unrated Total
Pooled Investments:
Local Agency Investment
Fund (LAIF) $ -8 - $ - 8 2,962,837 $ 2,962,837
California Asset Management
Program (CAMP) 893,134 - - - 893,134
Certificates of Deposit - - - 8,759,339 8,759,339
Government securities 1,981,454 - - - 1,981,454
Held by Bond Trustees:
U.S. Treasury Note - - - 249,980 249,980
Municipal Bonds - - - 470,000 470,000
Total Investments $ 2,874,588 _$ -8 -8 12,442,156 _$ 15,316,744

Concentration of Credit Risk

This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single issuer.
Accordingly, the notes to the financial statements should disclose if the government has five (5) percent
or more of its total investments in a single issuer. More than five percent of the City’s investments are
with the “Middle School” Community Facilities District No. 1990-1.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counter party (e. g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. The California Government Code and the City's investment policy do not contain legal or
policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments,
other than the following provision for deposits. The California Government Code requires that a financial
institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the
governmental unit). The fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal atleast 110%
of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to
secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured
public deposits.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
Investment Fair Value

The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2022:

e U.S. government agency note, certificates of deposit, Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), and
California Asset Management Program (CAMP) values are based on unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date [Level 1 inputs].

¢ Municipal bonds are valued based on unobservable inputs (supported by little or no market
activity, such as the City’s best estimate of what hypothetical market participants would use to
determine a transaction price for the asset or liability at the reporting date) [Level 3 inputs].

The City is a voluntary participant in the LAIF and the CAMP that are regulated by the California
Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the
City's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based
upon the City's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF and CAMP for the entire respective
portfolios (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is
based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF and CAMP, which are recorded on an amortized
cost basis.

3. LOANS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

The following is a summary of loans and notes receivable of the City for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Balance Balance at
July 1, 2021 Additions Deletions June 30, 2022
Successor Housing Agency:

Diamond Terrace P. A. M. Note $ 2,833,600 $ - $ (11400 $ 2,722,200
Eden Affordable Housing Note 567,000 - - 567,000
Stranahan Affordable Housing Notes 22,350 - - 22,350
Total Successor Housing Agency 3,422 950 - (111,400) 3,311,550
Total Notes Receivable $ 3422950 _$ - $  (111,400) _$ 3,311,550

Diamond Terrace Note

On September 21, 1999, the former RDA low-moderate housing fund made a loan to the Professional
Apartment Management, Inc. ("PAM") in the amount of $750,000, at a non-interest bearing rate, to
construct and develop an affordable senior assisted living center on the site known as "Diamond Terrace."
The note is secured by the Deed of Trust. The former RDA loaned an additional $1,286,000 on October
24, 2001. On December 1, 2003, PAM began drawing on a $2,000,000 loan from the former RDA in the
amount of $200,000 annually. The principal balance is payable commencing on October 1, 2005 through
October 1, 2030. The balance of the loan due to the Successor Housing Agency was $2,722,200 at June 30,
2022.
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3. LOANS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE, Continued

Eden Housing Loan

On October 13, 1992, the former RDA low-moderate housing fund made a loan to the Peace Grove, Inc.
in the amount of $567,000, at a non-interest bearing rate, for the purchase of land for a redevelopment
and housing project for low-income mental health system clients. The loan is secured by the Deed of
Trust. The principal balance is payable on December 18, 2052. As of June 30, 2022, the outstanding balance
of the loan due to the Successor Housing Agency was $567,000.

Stranahan Affordable Housing Loans

The former RDA low-moderate housing fund participated in a second mortgage assistance program,
whereby qualified applicants are loaned money for a "silent second" down payment to purchase a
home in the Stranahan Development within the City. There are five individual loans outstanding,.
Interest is accrued on the principal for the first 15-35 years and then the total of accrued interest and
principal is forgiven over the last 10 years of the term of the lease. As of June 30, 2022, the outstanding
balance of the loans due to the Successor Agency was $22,350 of principal. The collectability of the
accrued interest on these notes ($31,348) is doubtful and an allowance has been recorded to offset the
full amount.

4, INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
Due To, Due From

AtJune 30, 2022, the City had the following short-term interfund receivables and payables:

Due from
Non-major
Governmental Endeavor
Due to Funds Hall Total
General Fund  § - 5 120983 $ 120,983
Total $ - 5 120,983 _$ 120,983

General Fund cash flow loans totaling $120,983 were made to Endeavor Hall. The balance of the
Endeavor Hall receivable is expected to be repaid from future facility rental fees.
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4. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS, Continued

Interfund Transfers

The following is a summary of the City’s interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Transfers In

Capital Non-major
General Improvement Governmental
Transfers Out Fund Program Funds Total
Landscape Management $ 40,679 $ - $ 1,130 $ 41,809
American Rescue Plan Act 1,467,024 - - 1,467,024
Non-major Governmental Funds 89,978 1,632,609 20,084 1,742,671
Total $ 1,597,681 $ 1,632,609 $ 21,214 $ 3,251,504 |

The City transferred money into the General Fund from the following funds: Landscape Maintenance,
Gas Tax HUTA, the Grove Park District, Oakhurst Geological Hazard Abatement District, Neighborhood
Street Lighting District, Measure ] Grants, Grants, American Rescue Act Plan grant, and Stormwater
Treatment Assessment District to reimburse the City for administrative support activities. In addition,
the City transferred money into the Capital Improvement Program from Gas Tax HUTA, Gas Tax RMRA,
and Measure ] Grants to fund project costs associated with the Stormwater Treatment Assessment
District.

5. LEASES
The City has several leasing arrangements, summarized below.

The City has accrued liabilities for two equipment leases. The discount rate used in the calculation of the
lease liabilities were 3.69% and 5.00%. The remaining liability for the leases was $244,640 as of June 30,
2022. Right-to-use assets, net of amortization, for the leases totaled $216,692 as of June 30, 2022. The City
is required to make principal and interest payments of $924 a month through July 2023, and $33,525 a
year through September 2028.

The City’s schedule of future payments included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
Ending June 30,

2023 $ 44,718 $ 339 $ 45,057
2024 33,833 616 34,449
2025 33,014 511 33,525
2026 33,116 409 33,525
2027 33,217 307 33,524

2028-2029 66,742 308 67,040
Total $ 244,640 $ 2,490 $ 247,130
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS
Government-Wide Financial Statements

As of June 30, 2022 the City's capital assets consisted of the following;:

Governmental ~ Business-Type Total
Activities Activities
Net depreciable Assets:
Construction in progress $ 1,046,789 $ - 5 1,046,789
Land 2,086,965 167,738 2,254,703
Total non depreciable assets 3,133,754 167,738 3,301,492
Depreciable Assets:
Buildings 5,937,106 1,400,744 7,337,850
Improvements 7,660,589 159,579 7,820,168
Machinery and equipment 1,861,599 5,024 1,866,623
Infrastructure 33,239,930 - 33,239,930
Intangible assets (right-to-use) 254,694 - 254,694
Total depreciable assets 48,953,918 1,565,347 50,519,265
Total accumulated depreciation (22,971,467) (723,882) (23,695,349)
Depreciable assets, net 25982451 841,465 26,823,916

Total governmental activities capital assets, net 29116205 _$ 1,009203 _$ 30125408

The following is a summary of governmental activities capital assets transactions for the year ended June
30, 2022;

Balance Balance
July 1, 2021 Additions Deletions June 30, 2022
Non depreciable Assets:
Construction in progress $ 1,109,270 $ 962,813 $ (1,025294) $ 1,046,789
Land 2,086,965 - - 2,086,965
Total non depreciable assets 3,196,235 962,813 (1,025,294) 3,133,754
Depreciable Assets:

Machinery and equipment 1,773,780 153,184 (65,365) 1,861,599
Buildings 5,937,106 - - 5,937,106
Improvements 6,635,295 1,025,294 - 7,660,589
Infrastructure 33,239,930 - - 33,239,930
Intangible assets - 254,694 - 254,694
Total depreciable assets 47,586,111 1433172 (65,365) 48,953,918

Accumulated depreciation:
Machinery and equipment (1,285,928) (100,425) 65,365 (1,320,988)
Buildings (3,075,734) (118,580) - (3,194,314)
Improvements (3,239,353) (327,540) - (3,566,893)
Infrastructure (14,387,646) (463,624) - (14,851,270)
Intangible assets - (38,002) - (38,002)
Total accumulated depreciation (21,988,661) (1,048171) 65,365 (22,971,467)
Depreciable assets, net 25,597,450 385,001 - 25,982,451

Total governmental activities

capital assets, net $ 28793685 _$ 1347814 5  (1.025294) $ 29,116,205
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued
Government-Wide Financial Statements, Continued

For the year ending June 30, 2022 depreciation' and amortization expense was charged to
functions/ programs of the governmental activities as follows:

General government $ 81,913
Parks and recreation 252,329
Public safety 128,108
Public works 585,821

Total depreciation expense $ 1,048171

The following is a summary of business-type activities capital assets transactions for the year ended June
30, 2022:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2021 Additions Deletions _ June 30, 2022
Non depreciable Assets:
Land $ 167,738 _$ - $ - 5 167,738
Total non depreciable assets 167,738 - - 167,738
Depreciable Assets:

Machinery and equipment 5,024 - - 5,024

Improvements 159,579 - - 159,579

Buildings 1,400,744 - - 1,400,744

Total depreciable assets 1,565,347 - - 1,565,347

Accumulated depreciation:

Machinery and equipment (5,024) - - (5,024)
Improvements (153,449) (858) - (154,307)
Buildings (536,537) (28,014) - (564,551)

Total accumulated depreciation (695,009) (28,872) - (723,882)

Depreciable assets, net 870,338 (28,872) - 841,465
Total business-type activities

capital assets, net $ 1,038,076 _$ (28872) _$ -5 1,009,203

For the year ending June 30, 2022 depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the
business-type activities as follows:

Endeavor Hall $ 28872
Total depreciation expense $ 28872
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued
Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund financial statements do not present general government capital assets, which are
shown in the Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide
Statement of Net Position. The capital assets of the enterprise funds in the Proprietary Fund Financial
Statements are the same as those shown in the business-type activities of the Government-Wide Financial
Statements. Internal Service Funds' capital assets are combined with governmental activities.

7. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Compensated absences include vacation and sick leave. It is the policy of the City to pay 100% of the
capped accumulated vacation leave when a public safety employee retires or terminates, and up to 18
months of a general employee's maximum annual accrual allowed upon the same leave of employment
action. The City recognizes the liability for its compensated absences in the governmental activities. The
following is a summary of compensated absences transactions during the year ended June 30, 2022:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance Amount Due in
July 1, 2021 Additions Deletions June 30, 2022 One Year
Compensated absences $ 165.747 _$ 131505 _$ 129962 _$ 167.290 _$ 83,645

8. CONDUIT DEBT

The following debt issuances were issued by the City for the express purpose of providing capital
financing for third parties that are not part of the primary government of the City. Although these
conduit debt obligations may bear the name of the City, the City has no obligation for such debt beyond
the resources provided by a lease or loan with the third party on whose behalf they are issued.

Middle School Community Facilities District- Original Issue $6,400,000

Middle School Community Facilities District (CFD) Bonds in the principal amount of $6,400,000 were
issued on September 2, 1990 by the City under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982.
Principal payments are payable on September 2 of each year. Interest payments are payable semi-
annually on March 2 and September 2. The bonds are non-city obligations and are secured solely by
special assessment revenue from CFD No. 1990-1. As of June 30, 2022, the outstanding balance of the
non-city bond obligation was $470,000.
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8. CONDUIT DEBT, Continued

Lydia Lane Sewer Assessment District-Original Issue $228,325

Lydia Lane Sewer Assessment District Bonds in the principal amount of $228,325 were issued on August
5, 2002 by the City. Principal payments are payable on September 2 of each year. Interest payments are
payable semi-annually on March 2 and September 2. The bonds are non city obligations and are secured
by sewer assessment district revenue. As of June 30, 2022, the outstanding balance of the non-city bond
obligation was $133,325.

Clayton Financing Authority 2007 Special Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds-Original Issue $5,060,000

Refunding bonds were issued on May 17, 2007 by the Clayton Financing Authority in the principal
amount of $5,060,000 to refund the Authority's 1997 Special Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (the "1997
Bonds"), finance the acquisition and construction of certain public capital improvements (the Project),
establish a reserve fund for the Bonds (funded part in cash and part from a reserve fund surety bond),
and to pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds. The 1997 Bonds were issued to purchase the CFD 1990-1
local obligations, which are recovered by special assessment revenues from CFD 1990-1. Principal
payments are payable on September 2 of each year. Interest payments are payable semi-annually on
March 2 and September 2. The bonds are non city obligations and are secured by revenues received by
the Authority as the result of the payment of debt service on the CFD 1990-1 Local Obligations. As of
June 30, 2022, the outstanding balance of the non-city bond obligation was $420,000.

9. UNEARNED AND DEFERRED REVENUE
Deferred Revenue
Deferred inflows of resources were recorded in the fund financial statements because the funds were not

available to finance expenditures of the current period. At June 30, 2022, deferred inflows of resources in
the fund financial statements were as follows.

Successor Other Total
General Housing Governmental Governmental

Fund Agency Funds Funds

Deferred revenue
Unavailable s.tate-mandated $ 260,379 $ B $ } $ 260,379
program reimbursements

Unavailable accounts receivable - - 332,166 332,166
Unavailable loans receivable - 2,722,200 - 2,722,200
Total deferred revenue $ 260,379 $ 2,722,200 $ 332,166 $ 3,314,745
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10. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City participates in the Municipal Pooling Authority of Northern California (MPA), a joint powers
agreement between twenty cities, which provides insurance coverage for liability, auto, property, and
workers' compensation claims. Claims liabilities are accrued when it is probable that a loss has occurred
and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. The MPA covers claims in an amount up to
$29,000,000. The City has a deductible of $5,000 per claim for liability cases and no_deductible for
workers’ compensation claims. Once the City's deductible is met, the MPA becomes responsible for
payment of all claims and legal defense. The MPA is governed by a board consisting of one voting
representative from each member municipality. The Board controls the operations of the MPA including
selection of management, approval of operating budgets, and is independent of any influence by member
municipalities beyond their representation on the Board. The City's general liability and workers’
compensation premium payments made to MPA for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 are in accordance
with formulas established by the MPA. Actual surpluses or losses are shared according to a formula
developed from overall loss costs and spread to member entities on a percentage basis after a
retrospective rating. Financial statements may be obtained from MPA at 1911 San Miguel Drive, Suite
200, Walnut Creek, CA 9459%6. The City has had no settlements which exceeded insurance coverage
during fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. Estimates of incurred, but not reported, liability claims are
included in the City's claims estimates and based upon historical experiences as calculated by the MPA.,

11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
Plan Description

The Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the California
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). A full description of the pension plan benefit
provisions, assumptions for funding purposes (not accounting purposes) and membership information
is listed in the latest Annual Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2018. This report is a publicly
available valuation report that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications. All
qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the City’s separate Public
Safety (police) and Miscellaneous (all other) defined benefit pension plans. Both the Public Safety and
Miscellaneous plans are part of the public agency cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit
pension plan (PERF C), which is administered by CalPERS. PERF C consists of a Safety and
Miscellaneous pool (also referred to as “risk pools”), which are comprised of individual employer safety
and miscellaneous rate plans, respectively. Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State
statute and City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of
the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be
obtained from CalPERS at 400 Q Street, Sacramento, CA 95811.
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, Continued

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death
benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years
of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service
become vested and are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are
eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following:
the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>